MEMORANDUM
TO:

Board of Directors

FROM:

Catherine Hayes, Board Secretary

DATE:

July 18, 2018

RE:

July 26, 2018, Board Meeting

This memorandum shall serve as notice of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Upper
Eagle Regional Water Authority:

Thursday, July 26, 2018
8:30 a.m.
Eagle River Water & Sanitation District Office
Walter Kirch Room
846 Forest Road
Vail, CO
81657

Cc:
ERWSD Managers
Carol Dickman

Board Materials via Email:
Caroline Bradford, Independent Consultant
Dan Clayton, Brown & Caldwell
Steve Coyer, Mountain Star
Amy Greer, Stan Bernstein and Associates, Inc.
Jonathan Heroux, Piper Jaffray & Co
Justin Hildreth, Town of Avon
Dan Leary, Traer Creek Metropolitan District
Lee Leavenworth, Loyal E. Leavenworth PC
Holly Loff, Eagle River Watershed Council
Ken Marchetti, Robertson & Marchetti, PC
Preston Neill, Town of Avon
Melissa Macdonald Nelson, Independent Consultant
Barry Parker, Beaver Creek Metropolitan District
Mike Reisinger, Berry Creek Metropolitan District
Bill Simmons, Beaver Creek Metropolitan District
Nina Timm, Berry Creek Metropolitan District
Bob Weaver, Leonard Rice Engineers

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING
July 26, 2018, 8:30 a.m.
1. Consultant/Guest Introduction
2. Public Comment•
3. Action Items
3.1. Meeting Minutes of June 28, Regular Meeting☼
3.2. 2017 Audit Approval – James Wilkins☼
4. Strategy Items
4.1. Benchmarking and Metrics Update – Linn Brooks*
4.2. Board member input
5. General Manager Report – Linn Brooks*
5.1. General Manager Information Items
5.2. Operations Report*
5.2.1. Nutrient Management MOU – Siri Roman*
5.3. Engineering Report – Jason Cowles*
5.4. Public Affairs Report – Diane Johnson*
5.5. Monthly Reports
5.5.1.
5.5.2.
5.5.3.
5.5.4.

Development Report*
Contract Logs*
Authority and District Committees*
Authority June Meeting Summary – draft*

6. General Counsel Report – Jim Collins†
7. Water Counsel Report – Glenn Porzak
7.1. Black Lakes Augmentation Plan*
8. Executive Session pursuant to § 24-6-402(b) and (e), C.R.S.
8.1. General Counsel Review of Matters in Negotiation – Jim Collins
8.1.1. Traer Creek Update
8.2. Water Counsel Review of Matters in Negotiation – Glenn Porzak
8.2.1. Eagle River MOU
8.2.2. Bolts Lake/Minturn Water Service Agreement†
8.2.3. CRCA Matters
9. Adjournment

BOARD ACTION REQUEST
TO:

UERWA Board of Directors

FROM:

James Wilkins, Director of Finance

DATE:

July 26, 2018

RE:

Audited Financial Statements for Year ended December 31, 2017

Summary of Subject: Each year we are required to have an independent auditing firm audit
our financial statements. The auditing firm of McMahan and Associates, L.L.C., performs this
service. The draft of our audited financial statements, for the year ended December 31, 2017, is
attached for your review. The Board Audit Committee will present the audit to the full board and
ask for acceptance of the report. Paul Backes, audit partner, attended the Audit Committee
meeting on July 20, 2018, to present the material and answer questions.
Discussion and Background: The auditors performed the required procedures in May to test
system reliability and audit reported financial balances. They then met with the Board Audit
Committee to review the results of field work, potential for financial misstatement, risk of fraud
and to plan the report presentation. Additionally they discussed the clean results and advised no
material issues or audit adjustments were found.
Attached is the auditor’s communications letter discussed with the Audit Committee addressing
audit scope, controls and processed audit adjustments. No material items or adjustments were
noted.
Legal Issues: We are required to file our audited financial statements with the Colorado
Department of Local Government no later than July 31st and with the EMMA national bond
disclosure network no later than August 30th.
Budget Implication: The 2017 annual budget to actual results are shown in the report on
pages E-1 and E-2. Actual revenue results were $9.8 million below budget. This was entirely
due to not issuing a revenue bond in the amount of $9.9mm that was originally budgeted for
2017.

Recommendation: The Board Audit Committee recommends
acceptance of the draft audit report for December 31, 2017.
Suggested Resolution and Motion: I move we accept the audited
financial statements as presented, (or as Modified) and direct final reports
to be distributed. I further move we authorize the General Manager and
Director of Finance to sign the letter of representation addressed to
McMahan and Associates, L.L.C.
846 Forest Road, Vail, Colorado 81657 Tel (970) 476-7480 Fax (970) 476-4089 uerwa.org

Audited Financial Statements for Year ended December 31, 2017

P a g e 2 of 2

Please let me know if you have any questions or would like additional information. Thank you for
your attention to this matter.
Attached Supporting Documentation:
Draft Audited Financial Statement Report for December 31, 2017.
(Before Printing: Large Doc 59 pages)
Table of Contents:
A section: Auditors opinion –“Clean”
B Section: Management Discussion & Analysis letter
C Section: GAAP Financial Statements - Audited
D Section: Footnotes
E Section: Budgetary Basis Financials and Debt service Schedules
F Section: Statistical Data – Charts and graphs
F-1: Rate Maintenance Covenant Tables - MET
F-5 to 7: Schedule of Water and Storage rights with updated value
Governing Board Letter regarding required communication on Audit Scope – no material items
noted.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Board of Directors
Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
(the “Authority”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, which collectively comprise the
Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents, and the related notes to the
financial statements. The prior year comparative information has been derived from the Upper Eagle
Regional Water Authority’s 2016 financial statements and, in our report dated June 30, 2017, we
expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority as of December 31, 2017, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Member: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Avon: (970) 845-8800
Aspen: (970) 544-3996
Frisco: (970) 668-3481

Paul J. Backes, CPA, CGMA
Michael N. Jenkins, CA, CPA, CGMA
Daniel R. Cudahy, CPA, CGMA
A1

DRAFT

To the Board of Directors
Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority

Other Matters
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis in Section B be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis in Section B in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
The budgetary comparison and debt service schedules in Section E are not a required part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The budgetary comparison and debt service schedules have
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statement or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority’s financial statements as a whole. The statistical data in Section F are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
statistical data have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

McMahan and Associates, L.L.C.
July 31, 2018
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017

The discussion and analysis is designed to provide an analysis of the Upper Eagle Regional Water
Authority’s (the Authority) financial condition and operating results and to inform the reader on the
Authority’s financial issues and activities.
The Management's Discussion and Analysis (the MD&A) should be read in conjunction with the
Authority’s financial statements.
Financial Highlights
In 2017, total net position decreased by $2,184,577 from $58,334,743 in 2016 to $56,150,166 in
2017. Depreciation expense of $4,779,293 netted with debt payments of $1,810,232 and capitalized
expenditures of $3,055,924 along with prior year capitalized costs associated with the lake creek
wells project being expensed of $1,482,132 are the main reasons for the decrease in net position.
Overall for the year, current and other assets decreased by $698,360. A bond issue in April 2013
provided cash for the multi-year capital program. Proceeds being held at December 31, 2017, for
future capital project spending were $1,745,867. Capital assets decreased by $2,714,655, which
represents total capital additions and contributions, net of changes in accumulated depreciation and
disposals. Total liabilities decreased $1,311,975 during 2017, primarily as a result of scheduled
annual debt service payments.
In 2017, total revenues decreased by $367,695 relative to 2016, and total expenses increased by
$2,062,028 when compared to 2016. The Authority’s 2017 financial activity generated a net
decrease of $1,104,898 in net position prior to the depreciation on capital assets. In accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), $4,779,293 of capital asset depreciation
was expensed, which does not represent cash funding for capital assets in the current period. The
net result after GAAP adjustments was a decrease in net position of $2,184,577 for 2017, compared
to an increase in net position of $245,146 in 2016.
In 2016, total revenues increased by $2,088,645 relative to 2015, and total expenses decreased by
$333,497 when compared to 2015. The Authority’s 2016 financial activity generated a $1,958,572
decrease in net position prior to the depreciation on capital assets. In accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), $4,965,517 of capital asset depreciation was expensed,
which does not represent cash funding for capital assets in the current period. The net result after
GAAP adjustments was a increase in net position of $245,146 for 2016, compared to a $2,176,996
decrease in 2015.
Overview of the Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Authority are presented as a special purpose government engaged
only in business type activities - providing water utility services.
The Statements of Net Position present information on all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
the net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is
improving or deteriorating.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017
(continued)

Overview of the Financial Statements (continued)
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present information that
reflects how the Authority’s net position changed during the past year. All changes in the net
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the statement for
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.
The Statements of Cash Flows report the Authority’s cash flows from operating, capital and related
financing, and investing activities.
These financial statements distinguish functions of the Authority that will be principally supported by
service charges. The functions of the Authority include effective and economical operation of water
systems within the jurisdictional boundaries of the Authority. The notes to financial statements
provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
financial statements.
NET POSITION
Assets:
Current and other assets
Capital assets, net
Total Assets

2017

2016

2015

$ 18,147,610
71,507,918
89,655,528

$ 18,845,970
74,222,573
93,068,543

$ 20,262,540
73,842,451
94,104,991

84,774

168,311

251,849

84,774

168,311

251,849

31,852,538
1,737,598
33,590,136

33,692,926
1,209,185
34,902,111

35,459,167
808,076
36,267,243

42,716,610

45,395,371

46,642,138

3,791,989
1,745,867
7,895,700
$ 56,150,166

2,900,931
3,386,591
6,651,850
$ 58,334,743

2,846,233
6,620,099
1,981,127
$ 58,089,597

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred charge on refunding
Total Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Debt
Capital projects
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority’s financial
position. In the case of the Authority, assets exceeded liabilities. The general decline in net position
is a result of expensing annual asset depreciation in accordance with GAAP reporting.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017
(continued)

Overview of the Financial Statements (continued)
The largest portion of the Authority’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets, less any
related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The Authority uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the Authority’s net investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
REVIEW OF REVENUES
Revenues:
Operating revenues:
Service fees
Non-operating revenues:
Investment income
Interest credit - Build
America Bonds
Other
Capital contributions:
Plant investment fees
Water storage fees
Contributed assets
Total Revenues

2017

2016

2015

$ 11,539,107

$ 11,290,298

$ 10,550,610

136,508

95,809

31,081

292,175
62,114

291,862
42,509

291,235
38,738

1,050,991
462,607
13,543,502

760,056
1,405,763
24,900
13,911,197

863,905
46,983
11,822,552

In 2017, service revenues continued to increase year over year. During 2016, the Authority received
a cash contribution for the Mountain Star Tank water storage project but did not receive any water
storage fee contributions in 2017.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017
(continued)
REVIEW OF EXPENSES
2017

2016

2015

Expenses:
Operating Expenses:
Water treatment
Water distribution
Other operating
General and administrative
Non-operating expenses:
Interest expense
Other
Total Expenses

3,972,974
4,807,119
1,191,733
4,011,873

3,876,409
4,684,616
1,133,586
2,336,793

4,097,228
4,548,505
1,084,514
2,506,990

1,741,855
2,525
15,728,079

1,631,664
2,983
13,666,051

1,760,244
2,067
13,999,548

Change in Net Position

(2,184,577)

Net Position - Beginning of Year

58,334,743

58,089,597

60,266,593

$ 56,150,166

$ 58,334,743

$ 58,089,597

Net Position - End of Year

245,146

(2,176,996)

In 2017, total expenses increased year over year. The increase is mostly related to general and
administrative cost increases related to the disposal of prior year capitalized expenses and the
agreement with Eagle River Water and Sanitation District. The increases relate to IT infrastructure
upgrades, software purchases, and increasing salary expenses.
In 2016, total expenses decreased slightly. The decrease in expenses relates to slight operational
decreases and decreases in interest expense as debt is paid down. Management budgeting efforts
continued to hold operating expenses stable during 2016.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017
(continued)
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets
The Authority’s investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as of December 31,
2017 and 2016, were $71,507,918 and $74,222,573, respectively. This investment in capital assets
includes land and land improvements, water rights and storage, treatment plants, distribution
systems, telemetry, water wells and construction in process.
Most of the water and storage rights currently used by the Authority were provided by the member
government entities at no cost to the Authority. In accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), only owned water and storage rights are shown on the Authority’s
Statement of Net Position at historic cost, totaling $1,709,148. This cost represents mostly legal
expenditures to establish the Authority’s ability to use these rights to provide water directly to the
customers of each of its members and a small acquisition of new rights. Also in accordance with
GASB, the investment in Eagle Park Reservoir Company Stock, which provides a valuable source
of raw water supply, is not reflected in capital assets, but is shown in Other Assets at the historic
cost of $4,445,917. Management of the Authority believes the actual value of these water and
storage rights used by the Authority to be much greater than historical cost at December 31, 2017.
See the Schedule of Water and Storage Rights in the Statistical Section (page F5-7) for additional
information.
Analysis of changes in capital assets in 2017 is as follows:

Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land and land improvements
Water/storage rights
Construction in progress
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated

1/1/17
Beginning
Balance

$

Additions

780,962
1,709,148
4,897,089

$

3,049,403

7,387,199

3,049,403

Reclasses
and
Retirements

$

(4,297,620)
(4,297,620)

12/31/17
Ending
Balance

$

780,962
1,709,148
3,648,872
6,138,982

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Treatment plants
Distribution system
Water wells
Total capital assets
being depreciated

34,089,212
83,791,708
15,141,143

465,437
2,820,502
26,916

-

34,554,649
86,612,210
15,168,059

133,022,063

3,312,855

-

136,334,918

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Treatment plants
Distribution system
Water wells
Total accumulated depreciation

(19,291,222)
(41,809,088)
(5,086,379)
(66,186,689)

(1,413,283)
(2,761,399)
(604,611)
(4,779,293)

-

(20,704,505)
(44,570,487)
(5,690,990)
(70,965,982)

Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net

66,835,374

(1,466,438)

-

65,368,936

Total capital assets, net

$ 74,222,573

$

B5
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017
(continued)
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (continued)

Capital Assets (continued)
In 2017, total net capital assets were $71,507,918, a decrease of $2,714,655 from the 2016 amount
of $74,222,573. Net capital asset additions of $2,064,638 were offset by changes in accumulated
depreciation of $4,779,293 for a net decrease in capital assets of $2,714,655.
In 2016, total net capital assets were $74,222,573, an increase of $380,122 from the 2015 amount
of $73,842,451. Net capital asset additions of $3,657,961 were offset by changes in accumulated
depreciation of $3,277,839 for a net increase in capital assets of $380,122.
Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in Note III.F to the financial
statements.
Long-term Debt
At the end of 2017, the Authority had revenue bonds of $30,621,948 and an assessment payable to
Eagle Park Reservoir Company of $1,230,590.
At the end of 2016, the Authority had revenue bonds of $32,382,104 and an assessment payable to
Eagle Park Reservoir Company of $1,310,822.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017
(continued)
BUDGET VARIANCES AND FUTURE CONSIDERATIONS

Budget Variances
In 2017, revenues were under budget expectations by $9,782,574. The negative variance is mainly
due to the Authority budgeting for bond proceeds that were not issues during the year. The
expenditure budget was $14,392,000, including $2,898,854 of capital additions. Actual expenditures
were $84,676 less than budget. The positive is due to slight over and under budgeting of individual
items.
2018 Budget Considerations
The Authority will continue to promote wise use of water and support a comprehensive water
conservation program. Additionally, the Authority will explore opportunities to develop or acquire
new water resources.
The approved expenditure budget for 2018 is $14,183,564, including $3,417,000 of capital
additions.
The 2018 water use rates continue to include base fees and a five-tier usage structure. Each tier
allows 10,000 gallons of water use per SFE. The tier pricing progressively increases above previous
tier to further promote wise use of water.
The 2018 monthly water rates are $17.29 service base rate per SFE, plus $5.59 debt service base
rate per SFE, plus $3.39 capital replacement program base rate per SFE and tied usage rates of
$3.62 per 1,000 gallons for tier one, $5.43 per 1,000 gallons for tier two, $8.14 per 1,000 gallons for
tier three, $12.22 per 1,000 gallons for tier four and $18.33 per 1,000 gallons for tier five (41,000
gallons and over).
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information
should be addressed to: James Wilkins, Director of Finance, Eagle River Water and Sanitation
District, 846 Forest Road, Vail, Colorado 81657.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - Unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents - Restricted
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Accounts
Interest - Build America Bonds
Current portion of notes receivable
Prepaid expenses

2017

2016

5,932,045
5,537,856

5,674,081
6,287,522

1,597,656
26,110
6,627
130,745

1,795,788
26,110
6,284
129,229

13,231,039

13,919,014

380,890
89,764
4,445,917

384,648
96,391
4,445,917

Total Other Assets

4,916,571

4,926,956

Capital Assets:
Land and improvements
Water/storage rights
Construction in progress
Treatment plants
Distribution system
Water wells
Less: Accumulated depreciation

780,962
1,709,148
3,648,872
34,554,649
86,612,210
15,168,059
(70,965,982)

780,962
1,709,148
4,897,089
34,089,212
83,791,708
15,141,143
(66,186,689)

Total Capital Assets

71,507,918

74,222,573

Total Non-current Assets

76,424,489

79,149,529

Total Assets

89,655,528

93,068,543

84,774

168,311

84,774

168,311

89,740,302

93,236,854

Total Current Assets
Non-current Assets:
Other Assets:
Patronage dividend receivable
Notes receivable - Due in more than one year
Investment in Eagle Park Reservoir Company

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred charge on refunding
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of
Resources

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Continued)

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Management fee payable
Interest payable
Loans and bonds payable - Due within one year
Deposits
Total Current Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities:
Other payables
Loans and bonds payable - Due in more than one year
Total Non-current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt
Capital projects
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

2017

2016

636,144
837,144
145,367
1,864,604
7,454

1,045,791
3,630
152,082
1,810,231
7,682

3,490,713

3,019,416

111,489
29,987,934

31,882,695

30,099,423

31,882,695

33,590,136

34,902,111

42,716,610

45,395,371

3,791,989
1,745,867
7,895,700

2,900,931
3,386,591
6,651,850

56,150,166

58,334,743

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Operating Revenues:
Service fees
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Water treatment
Water distribution
Other operating
General and administrative
Total Operating Expenses

2017

2016

11,539,107

11,290,298

11,539,107

11,290,298

3,972,974
4,807,119
1,191,733
4,011,873

3,876,409
4,684,616
1,133,586
2,336,793

13,983,699

12,031,404

Operating Income (Loss)

(2,444,592)

(741,106)

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment income
Interest credit - Build America Bonds
Other non-operating revenues
Interest expense
Paying agent fees

136,508
292,175
62,114
(1,741,855)
(2,525)

95,809
291,862
42,509
(1,631,664)
(2,983)

(1,253,583)

(1,204,467)

(3,698,175)

(1,945,573)

1,050,991
462,607

760,056
1,405,763
24,900

1,513,598

2,190,719

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions
Capital Contributions:
Plant investment fees
Water storage fees, net of refunds
Contributed assets
Total Capital Contributions
Change in Net Position

(2,184,577)

Net Position - Beginning of Year

58,334,743

58,089,597

Net Position - End of Year

56,150,166

58,334,743

245,146

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers and others
Cash payments for goods and services
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Cash Flows From Non-capital Financing Activities:
Patronage dividend received
Other cash receipts
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital
Financing Activities
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Cash received from system development fees
Cash received from water storage fees
Interest subsidy payment received - Build America Bonds
Cash paid for return of capital asset deposit
Cash paid for principal on debt
Cash paid for interest and paying agent fees on debt
Cash paid for capital acquisitions
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest income received
Interest received on notes receivable
Principal received on notes receivable
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

2017
11,737,241
(7,194,439)
4,542,802

2016
11,144,243
(6,603,960)
4,540,283

42,890
22,982

43,357
1,814

65,872

45,171

1,050,991
292,175
(228)
(1,810,231)
(1,725,951)
(3,049,924)

760,056
1,405,763
291,862
(3,962)
(1,736,085)
(1,709,031)
(5,264,142)

(5,243,168)

(6,255,539)

130,912
5,596
6,284
142,792
(491,702)

89,888
5,921
5,960
101,769
(1,568,316)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

11,961,603

13,529,919

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

11,469,901

11,961,603

Represented by Balance Sheet Captions:
Cash and cash equivalents - Unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents - Restricted
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

5,932,045
5,537,856
11,469,901

5,674,081
6,287,522
11,961,603

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Continued)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments:
Depreciation
Prior year capitalized assets expensed in the current year
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in management fee payable
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Non-cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Contribution of capital assets from developers

2017

2016

(2,444,592)

(741,106)

4,779,293
1,482,132
198,133
(1,516)
(415,651)
833,514
111,489
6,987,394

4,965,517
73,571
(146,054)
(14,313)
550,785
1,722
(149,839)
5,281,389

4,542,802

4,540,283

462,607

24,900

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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I.

Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority (the “Authority”) was formed September 18, 1984 pursuant
to an establishing contract by the following entities located in Eagle County, Colorado (the
“members”):







Arrowhead Metropolitan District
Town of Avon
Beaver Creek Metropolitan District
Berry Creek Metropolitan District
Eagle-Vail Metropolitan District
Edwards Metropolitan District

The Authority, a quasi-municipal corporation, is governed pursuant to provisions of the Colorado
Special District Act. The Authority was established to make the best practical use of the
members’ joint resources to supply water and to further develop water resources and facilities in
a portion of Eagle County, Colorado. The Authority also provides water service to the Cordillera
and Bachelor Gulch developments through contracts with members.
The Authority may not be terminated while bonds, notes, or other obligations are outstanding,
unless provision for full payment of such obligation has been made. At December 31, 2017, the
Authority had debt with maturities through 2042.
The Authority has a service contract with the members. Under the terms of the agreement, the
Authority provides residents of the members water service; the Authority bills these residents at
rates which are expected to cover its costs of providing water services and other functions. Such
costs specifically include debt service requirements, depreciation, replacements, operations, and
maintenance. As part of the agreement, the members have leased all of their rights, associated
easements, and improvements to the Authority at no cost. As return consideration, the Authority
has agreed to maintain the associated improvements and to administer and protect the members’
plan for augmentation and water decrees at no cost to the members.
Effective July 1, 2015, the members approved an Amended and Restated Master Service
Contract (the “Master Service Contract”). In addition to the provisions described above, the
Master Service Contract stipulated that:







The members convey their individual water systems to the Authority.
All member customers become customers of the Authority.
Tap fees and water surcharges will remain revenue of the individual members.
Maintenance of the existing individual water systems becomes the responsibility of the
Authority.
Construction of new lines and the extension of existing lines to serve new developments
remains the responsibility of the individual members.
The members retain ownership of water rights and an interest in assets, including rights
to capacity in the system to the extent necessary to ensure service to their service areas
and to retain individual enterprise status.

The Authority has no employees; all operations and administrative functions are contracted with
Eagle River Water and Sanitation District (the “District”), as subsequently explained.

D1

DRAFT

I.

Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
The Authority’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements
(Statements and Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established by GAAP
used by the Authority are discussed below.
A.

Reporting Entity
The reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government; i.e., the Authority, and (b)
organizations for which the Authority is financially accountable. The Authority is
considered financially accountable for legally separate organizations if it is able to appoint
a voting majority of an organization's governing body and is either able to impose its will
on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the Authority. Consideration is
also given to other organizations, which are fiscally dependent; i.e., unable to adopt a
budget, levy taxes, or issue debt without approval by the Authority. Organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the Authority are such that
exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete are also included in the reporting entity.
Based on the criteria above, the Authority is not financially accountable for any other
entity nor is the Authority a component unit of any other government.

B.

Fund Accounting
The Authority uses funds to report on its financial position and the results of its
operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid
financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government
functions and activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set
of accounts.
The Authority uses a proprietary fund-type, an enterprise fund, to account for its activity,
providing water services to residents within the Authority’s boundaries. Enterprise funds
are used to account for operations (a) which are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises – where the intent of the governing body is that the
costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or
(b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
Measurement focus refers to whether financial statements measure changes in current
resources only (current financial focus) or changes in both current and long-term
resources (long-term economic focus). Basis of accounting refers to the point at which
revenues, expenditures, or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the
financial statements. Financial statement presentation refers to classification of revenues
by source and expenses by function.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement
Presentation (continued)
1.

Long-term Economic Focus and Accrual Basis
Proprietary funds use the long-term economic focus and are presented on the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and
expenses are recognized when incurred, regardless of the timing of the related
cash flows.

2.

Financial Statement Presentation
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the Authority’s enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

D.

Financial Statement Accounts and Accounting Policies
1.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, the Authority considers cash on
hand, demand deposits, U.S. government obligations and other highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents.
Investments are stated at fair value or net asset value. The change in fair value
of investments is recognized as an increase or decrease to investment assets
and investment income.
The Authority’s investment policy is detailed at note III.A.

2.

Receivables
Receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. An
allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount of $0 and $0 had been
established at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, to estimate
uncollectible accounts.

3.

Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include water/storage rights, land and improvements,
construction in progress, treatment plants, distribution systems, and water wells,
are reported in the financial statements. The Authority defines capital assets as
assets with an initial cost of $5,000 or more. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the
date of donation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
D.

Financial Statement Accounts and Accounting Policies (continued)
3.

Capital Assets (continued)
The cost of water and storage rights includes acquisition cost, legal and
engineering costs related to the development and augmentation of those rights.
Since the rights have a perpetual life, they are not amortized. All other costs,
including costs incurred for the protection of those rights, are expensed. See the
Schedule of Water and Storage Rights in the Statistical Section (pages F5-F7)
for additional information.
Each of the participating members leased or subleased sufficient water rights to
the Authority at no cost to the Authority to meet their projected needs upon full
build-out within their current boundaries.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend the life of the asset are not capitalized. Improvements
are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related
capital assets, as applicable.
Capital outlay for projects is capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase is capitalized as part of the value of the
assets constructed. During the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
Authority capitalized interest of $28,238 and $121,929, respectively, as part of
capital assets.
Treatment plants, distribution systems, and water wells are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets
Treatment plants
Distribution systems
Water wells

Years
5 - 40
5 - 40
5 - 40

In the event of the dissolution of the Authority, all of the assets of the Authority
shall immediately vest in the participating members, subject to any outstanding
liens, mortgages, or other pledges of such assets. The interest in the assets of
the Authority conveyed to each member shall be that proportion which the
average annual amount of treated water sold within the boundaries of each
member, bears to the average annual total amount of all treated water sold by
the Authority.
4.

Net Position
Net position represents the difference between assets, liabilities, and deferred
inflows (outflows) of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement
of those assets and increased by any unspent proceeds from related borrowings.
Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its
use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the Authority or through
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other
governments. All other net position is reported as unrestricted.
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December 31, 2017
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
D.

Financial Statement Accounts and Accounting Policies (continued)
5.

Long-term Obligations
Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and
amortized over the respective life of the respective debt using the straight-line
method, which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs
are expensed in the period incurred.
The deferred cost on bond refunding is being amortized over the lesser of the life
of the new bond or the remaining life of the refunded bonds using the straight-line
method which approximates the effective interest method. The amortization
amount is a component of interest expense and the unamortized deferred cost is
reflected as a deferred outflow of resources.

6.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The Authority only has
one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the deferred charge on
refunding reported in the statement of net position. A deferred charge on
refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and
its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of
the life of the refunded or refunding debt.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Authority does not have any
items that qualify for reporting in this category at December 31, 2017.

7.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the
Authority’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amount of
revenues and expenditures or expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

8.

Restricted and Unrestricted Resources
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
Authority’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as
they are needed.

D5

DRAFT

II.

Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017
(Continued)

Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability
A.

Budgetary Information
In the fall of each year, the Authority’s Board of Directors formally adopts a budget with
appropriations for the ensuing year pursuant to the Colorado Local Budget Law. The
budget is adopted on a non-GAAP basis and is reconciled to GAAP in Section E of this
report. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations and all appropriations lapse
at year-end.
As required by Colorado statutes, the Authority followed the required timetable noted
below in preparing, approving, and enacting its budget for 2017:

B.

1.

The Authority submitted, on or before October 15, 2016, a recommended budget
that detailed the necessary revenues to meet the Authority’s operating
requirements.

2.

On or prior to December 31, 2016, after a required publication of “Notice of
Budget” and a public hearing, the Authority adopted the proposed budget and a
resolution that legally appropriated expenditures for the upcoming year.

3.

After adoption of the budget resolution, the Authority may make the following
changes: a) it may approve supplemental appropriations to the extent of
revenues in excess of estimated revenues in the budget; b) it may approve
emergency appropriations; and c) it may reduce appropriations for which
originally estimated revenues are insufficient.

TABOR Amendment
In November 1992, Colorado voters amended Article X of the Colorado Constitution by
adding Section 20; commonly known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (“TABOR”). TABOR
contains revenue, spending, tax and debt limitations that apply to the State of Colorado
and local governments.
TABOR also requires local governments to establish an emergency reserve to be used
for declared emergencies only. Emergencies, as defined by TABOR, exclude economic
conditions, revenue shortfalls, or salary or fringe benefit increases. The reserve is
calculated at 3% of fiscal year spending. Fiscal year spending excludes bonded debt
service and enterprise spending.
Enterprises, defined as government-owned businesses authorized to issue revenue
bonds and receiving less than 10% of annual revenue in grants from state and local
governments, are excluded from the provisions of TABOR. The Authority’s management
believes its operations qualify for this exclusion.
The Authority believes it is in compliance with the financial provisions of TABOR.
However, TABOR is complex and subject to interpretation. Many of its provisions,
including the interpretation of how to calculate fiscal year spending limits and qualification
as an enterprise, will require judicial interpretation.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017
(Continued)

Detailed Notes on All Funds
A.

Deposits and Investments
The Authority’s deposits are entirely covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) or by collateral held under Colorado’s Public Deposit Protection Act
(“PDPA”). The FDIC insures depositors up to $250,000 for all accounts. Deposit
balances over $250,000 are collateralized as required by PDPA. The carrying amounts
of the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents were $11,469,901 and $11,961,603 as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Authority had the following cash and investments
with the following maturities:

Deposits:
Checking
Money market
Investment pools
Total

Deposits:
Checking
Money market
Investment pools
Total

Standard
& Poors
Rating
Not rated
Not rated
AAAm

Standard
& Poors
Rating
Not rated
Not rated
AAAm

December 31, 2017
Carrying
Amounts

Maturities
Less than
One to
one year
five years

96,988
2,845
11,370,068
11,469,901

96,988
2,845
11,370,068
11,469,901

December 31, 2016
Carrying
Amounts

Maturities
Less than
One to
one year
five years

140,908
7,286
11,813,409
11,961,603

140,908
7,286
11,813,409
11,961,603

The investment pool represents investments in the Colorado Government Liquid Asset
Trust (“COLOTRUST”) which is a 2a7-like pool. The fair value of the pool is determined
by the pool’s share price, and is measured at net asset value. The Authority has no
regulatory oversight for the pool.
Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to interest rate risk, the Authority
coordinates its investment maturities to closely match cash flow needs and restricts the
maximum investment term to less than two years from the purchase date.
Credit Risk. The Authority’s investment policy implements the prudent investor rule as a
guideline for investment decisions.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017
(Continued)

Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
A.

Deposits and Investments (continued)
Colorado statutes specify instruments in which local governments may invest, including:










Obligations of the U.S. and certain U.S. governmental agency securities
Certain international agency securities
General obligation and revenue bonds for U.S. local governmental entities
Bankers acceptances of certain banks
Commercial paper
Local government investment pools
Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities
Certain money market funds
Guaranteed investment contracts

Concentration of Credit Risk. According to the Authority’s investment policy, it is
permitted to invest up to the following maximum limits:

Investment Type
U.S. Treasury obligations
Qualified certificates of deposit
Qualified local government investment pools
Federal instrumentality securities
Repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S.
Treasury obligations
Bankers acceptances and commercial paper combined total

Maximum
Percentage
100%
50%
100%
50%
100%
30%

Fair Value of Investments The Authority measures and records its investments using fair
value measurement guidelines established by generally accepted accounting principles.
These guidelines recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy, as follows:




Level 1: Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets;
Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted market prices; and,
Level 3: Unobservable inputs.

Unrealized gains / losses were $0, which reflects the change in fair market value of
investments. At December 31, 2017, the Authority had the following recurring
measurements:
Investments Measured at Net Asset Value
Colotrust
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017
(Continued)

Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
B.

Summary of Cash and Investments
The Authority’s cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in the following financial
statement captions:
12/31/17
5,932,045
5,537,856
11,469,901

Cash and cash equivalents - Unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents - Restricted
Total

C.

12/31/16
5,674,081
6,287,522
11,961,603

Notes Receivable
The following is an analysis of changes in notes receivable for the past two fiscal years:
1/1/16
Beginning
Balance

Traer Creek

108,636
108,636

Less: Current portion
Long-term portion

(5,960)
102,676

Additions

Reductions
-

(5,961)
(5,961)

12/31/16
Ending
Balance
102,675
102,675
(6,284)
96,391

Additions

Reductions
-

(6,284)
(6,284)

12/31/17
Ending
Balance
96,391
96,391
(6,627)
89,764

1. Traer Creek Metropolitan District (“Traer Creek”)
On November 4, 2002, the Authority entered into a service agreement with Traer
Creek for augmentation water. This agreement requires Traer Creek to pay an
amount equal to the cost of 300 shares of Eagle Park Reservoir Company (the
“Reservoir Company”) stock for use in connection with the augmentation water. The
Authority is to remain the record titleholder of the 300 shares of the Reservoir
Company stock and will retain all shareholder rights. Pursuant to this agreement, the
purchase price of the Reservoir Company stock was $163,070. Annual combined
principal and interest payments of $11,880 are due to the Authority on September
15th through 2028. The loan bears interest at 5.45% per annum.
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(Continued)

Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
D.

Patronage Dividend Receivable
The Authority has a dividend receivable from Holy Cross Electric Association (“Holy
Cross”) which represents allocated refundable operating profits. These amounts are held
by Holy Cross as working capital until the financial condition of Holy Cross permits a
refund. Refunds are normally received annually approximately ten years in arrears.
During the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Authority received refunds of
$42,890 and $43,357, respectively, from Holy Cross. The balances due to the Authority
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, were $380,890 and $384,648, respectively.

E.

Investment in Eagle Park Reservoir Company
The Eagle Park Reservoir Company (the “Reservoir Company”), a Colorado nonprofit
corporation was formed May 8, 1998 to acquire water diversion, storage facilities and
water rights to operate its water storage facilities located in Eagle County, Colorado, and
to direct releases of water from the reservoir on behalf of its stockholders. An investment
in the Reservoir Company allows the owner to augment its existing water rights.
In 1998, the Authority acquired 3830 Class A Shares (approximately 19%) and 125 Class
B shares of the stock in the Reservoir Company for $2,216,574 and the
contribution/pledge of certain water rights. The $2,216,574 was financed through an
assessment obligation payable to the Reservoir Company, which is explained in Note
III.H.1, and is recorded as an investment in Eagle Park Reservoir Company, along with
$143,420 of legal costs related to the issuance of the assessment payable. Since 1998,
the Authority has acquired additional shares of the Reservoir Company through various
transactions. As of December 31, 2010, the Authority held 5390 Class A Shares
(approximately 21%), 125 Class B Series 1 and 131.5 Class B Series 2 shares of the
stock in the Reservoir Company at a cost of $4,445,917.
During 2011 through 2017, the Authority’s investment in the Reservoir Company was
unchanged.
As of December 31, 2017, the Authority held 5390 Class A Shares (approximately 21%),
125 Class B Series 1 and 131.5 Class B Series 2 shares of the stock in the Reservoir
Company at a cost of $4,445,917. See the Schedule of Water and Storage Rights in the
Statistical Section (pages F5-F7) for additional information.
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Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
F.

Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the past two fiscal years was as follows:
1/1/16
Beginning
Balance

Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land and land improvements
Water/storage rights
Construction in progress
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated

Additions

Reclasses
and
Retirements

12/31/16
Ending
Balance

780,962
1,709,148
3,546,773

5,395,115

(4,044,799)

780,962
1,709,148
4,897,089

3,049,403

(4,297,620)

780,962
1,709,148
3,648,872

6,036,883

5,395,115

(4,044,799)

7,387,199

3,049,403

(4,297,620)

6,138,982

Additions

Reclasses
and
Retirements

12/31/17
Ending
Balance

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Treatment plants
Distribution system
Water wells
Total capital assets
being depreciated

35,395,937
80,219,365
15,099,116

380,953
3,572,343
42,027

(1,687,678)
-

34,089,212
83,791,708
15,141,143

465,437
2,820,502
26,916

-

34,554,649
86,612,210
15,168,059

130,714,418

3,995,323

(1,687,678)

133,022,063

3,312,855

-

136,334,918

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Treatment plants
Distribution system
Water wells
Total accumulated depreciation

(19,515,167)
(38,913,007)
(4,480,676)
(62,908,850)

(1,463,733)
(2,896,081)
(605,703)
(4,965,517)

1,687,678
1,687,678

(19,291,222)
(41,809,088)
(5,086,379)
(66,186,689)

(1,413,283)
(2,761,399)
(604,611)
(4,779,293)

-

(20,704,505)
(44,570,487)
(5,690,990)
(70,965,982)

(970,194)

-

66,835,374

(1,466,438)

-

65,368,936

74,222,573

1,582,965

Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net

67,805,568

Total capital assets, net

73,842,451

4,424,921

(4,044,799)

(4,297,620)

71,507,918

Depreciation expense for the years ended 2016 and 2017 was charged to the following
departments:
2017
2,017,894
2,761,399
4,779,293

Water treatment
Water distribution
Total

2016
2,069,436
2,896,081
4,965,517

Fully depreciated assets totaled $11,819,838 and $15,363,818 for the years ended 2016
and 2017, respectively.
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(Continued)

Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
G.

Long-Term Debt
The Authority had the following long-term debt outstanding during the past two fiscal
years:
1. 1998 Assessment Obligation Note
As previously explained in Note III.F, the Authority financed its 1998 investment in the
Reservoir Company through the execution of an assessment obligation note in the
amount of $2,216,574. This note bears interest at 5.45% annually. Debt service
payments of $151,671 are due annually on September 16th through 2028.
The obligation is secured by the Authority’s ownership of common stock of the
Reservoir Company and certain water rights owned by participating members and
leased to the Authority. The agreement contains release provisions for the collateral
based on the timely payment of scheduled obligations. The assessment payable is
subject to annual appropriation.
The Authority is maintaining a reserve equal to the next fiscal year’s principal and
interest payments for this obligation.
2. Water Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2003
The Authority issued $5,830,000 of bonds in July 2003, the proceeds of which were
used to refund a portion of the Authority’s 1995 Bonds, purchase municipal bond
insurance, and pay the costs of issuance. The interest rates on the bonds range
from 2.00% to 3.80%. Interest is payable on June 1 and December 1, through 2018.
The principal is payable on December 1 and matures in various increments through
2018.
As special, limited obligations of the Authority, principal and interest on the bonds are
payable solely from net pledged revenues. Such net revenue includes income
derived from the water treatment facilities and other legally available revenue after
payment of operation and maintenance expenses of the system.
The bond documents include a Rate Maintenance Covenant, which requires the
Authority to establish service rates at a level sufficient to cover operating,
maintenance, system improvement, insurance, and other expenses, as well as 110%
of each fiscal year’s debt service requirements of outstanding Authority bonds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017
(Continued)

Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
G.

Long-Term Debt (continued)
2. Water Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 (continued)
These bonds are secured by a Reserve Fund equal to the least of 1) 10% of the
aggregate principal amount of outstanding 2003 Bonds and any Future Reserve
Fund Bonds (as defined in the bond documents), 2) the maximum annual principal
and interest on outstanding 2003 Bonds and any Future Reserve Fund Bonds, or 3)
125% of average principal and interest on the bonds and any Reserve Fund Bonds.
The Authority has purchased an insurance policy to provide reserve funds if needed;
therefore, no reserve has been reflected in these financial statements for this
purpose.
In accordance with bond indentures, the Authority has restricted cash and net
position equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the next installment and one-twelfth (1/12) of the
next principal installment.
Pursuant to bond documents, the Authority has also created an Operations Reserve
in an amount equal to three months of operations and maintenance expenses as set
forth in the Authority’s annual budget.
Only bonds maturing on and after December 1, 2014, are subject to redemption prior
maturity: these bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the
Authority at par value.
3. Water Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2007
The Authority issued $2,040,000 of bonds in October 2007, the proceeds of which
were used to refund the outstanding Authority’s 1995 Bonds, purchase municipal
bond insurance, and pay the costs of issuance. The interest rates on the bonds
range from 3.70% to 4.00%. Interest is payable on June 1st and December 1st,
through 2018. This bond issue consists of serial bonds due annually on December
1st in various increments through 2014 and term bonds due on December 1, 2016
and December 1, 2018. The serial bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption at par, plus accrued interest to the redemption date.
As special, limited obligations of the Authority, principal and interest on the bonds are
payable solely from net pledged revenues. Such net revenue includes income
derived from the water treatment facilities and other legally available revenue after
the payment of operation and maintenance expenses of the system.
The bond documents include a Rate Maintenance Covenant, which requires the
Authority to establish service rates at a level sufficient to cover operating,
maintenance, system improvement, insurance, and other expenses, as well as 110%
of each fiscal year’s debt service requirements of outstanding Authority bonds.
These bonds are secured by a Reserve Fund equal to the least of 1) 10% of the
aggregate principal amount of outstanding 2002 Bonds and any Reserve Fund
Bonds (as defined in the bond documents), 2) the maximum annual principal and
interest on outstanding 2002 Bonds and any Reserve Fund Bonds, or 3) 125% of
average principal and interest on the bonds and any Reserve Fund Bonds. The
Authority has purchased an insurance policy to provide reserve funds if needed;
therefore, no reserve has been reflected in these financial statements for this
purpose.
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Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
G.

Long-Term Debt (continued)
3. Water Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 (continued)
In accordance with bond indentures, the Authority has restricted cash and net
position equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the next installment and one-twelfth (1/12) of the
next principal installment.
Pursuant to bond documents, the Authority has also created an Operations Reserve
in an amount equal to three months of operations and maintenance expenses as set
forth in the Authority’s annual budget.
Only bonds maturing on and after December 1, 2016, are subject to redemption prior
maturity: these bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the
Authority at par value.
4. Tax-Exempt Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010
The Authority issued $8,695,000 of tax-exempt water revenue bonds in February
2010, the proceeds of which were used to retire the 2000 CWRPDA loan, finance
deposits to Reserve Fund (which is subsequently explained), and pay the costs of
issuance. The interest rates on the bonds range from 2.50% to 4.00%. Interest is
payable on June 1st and December 1st, through 2020. The principal is payable on
December 1st and matures in various increments through 2020.
As special, limited obligations of the Authority, principal and interest on the bonds are
payable solely from net pledged revenues. Such net revenue includes income
derived from the water treatment facilities and other legally available revenue after
the payment of operation and maintenance expenses of the system. In connection
with the issuance of these bonds, the Authority has adopted a resolution imposing a
new Water Debt Service Rate which is collected monthly from each single family
equivalent (“SFE”) in the system.
The bond documents include a Rate Maintenance Covenant, which requires the
Authority to establish service rates at a level sufficient to cover operating,
maintenance, system improvement, insurance, and other expenses, as well as 110%
of each fiscal year’s debt service requirements of outstanding Authority bonds.
These bonds and the Taxable Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 (collectively
referred to as the “2010 Bonds”), are secured by a common Reserve Fund equal to
the least of 1) 10% of the aggregate principal amount of outstanding 2010 Bonds and
any Reserve Fund Bonds (as defined in the bond documents), 2) the maximum
annual principal and interest on outstanding 2010 Bonds and any Reserve Fund
Bonds, or 3) 125% of average principal and interest on the bonds and any Reserve
Fund Bonds. The Authority has purchased an insurance policy to provide reserve
funds if needed; therefore, no reserve has been reflected in these financial
statements for this purpose.
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Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
G.

Long-Term Debt (continued)
4. Tax-Exempt Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 (continued)
In conjunction with the issuance of the 2010 Bonds, the Authority is required to
maintain a Rate Stabilization Fund of $600,000; the Rate Stabilization Fund was
created to help offset or reduce any increases in fees, rates, and other charges to the
users of the water system which was created by the Rate Maintenance Covenant.
In accordance with bond indentures, the Authority has restricted cash and net
position equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the next installment and one-twelfth (1/12) of the
next principal installment.
Pursuant to bond documents, the Authority has also created an Operations Reserve
in an amount equal to three months of operations and maintenance expenses as set
forth in the Authority’s annual budget.
These bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to their respective maturity
dates.
5. Taxable Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010
The Authority issued $14,650,000 of taxable water revenue bonds in February 2010,
the proceeds of which were used to finance improvements to the water system,
finance deposits to Reserve Fund (which is subsequently explained), and pay the
costs of issuance. The interest rates on the bonds range from 5.36% to 6.52%.
Interest is payable on June 1st and December 1st, through 2039. This bond issue
consists of term bonds due on December 1, 2025, December 1, 2030, and December
1, 2039; these bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption at par, plus
accrued interest to the redemption date.
These bonds are Qualified Build America Bonds, which indicates the bonds are not
tax-exempt. Under the Build America Program, the Authority may apply for interest
cost subsidies from the federal government. Such subsidies will be used by the
Authority to pay debt service on these bonds. During the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2017, the Authority recognized revenue of $292,175 related to this
subsidy.
As special, limited obligations of the Authority, principal and interest on the bonds are
payable solely from net pledged revenues. Such net revenue includes income
derived from the water treatment facilities and other legally available revenue after
the payment of operation and maintenance expenses of the system. In connection
with the issuance of these bonds, the Authority has adopted a resolution imposing a
new Water Debt Service Rate which is collected monthly from each single family
equivalent (“SFE”) in the system.
The bond documents include a Rate Maintenance Covenant, which requires the
Authority to establish service rates at a level sufficient to cover operating,
maintenance, system improvement, insurance, and other expenses, as well as 110%
of each fiscal year’s debt service requirements of outstanding Authority bonds.
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Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
G.

Long-Term Debt (continued)
5. Taxable Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 (continued)
As previously discussed, these bonds and the Tax-Exempt Water Revenue Bonds,
Series 2010 (collectively referred to as the “2010 Bonds”), are secured by a common
Reserve Fund equal to the least of 1) 10% of the aggregate principal amount of
outstanding 2010 Bonds and any Reserve Fund Bonds (as defined in the bond
documents), 2) the maximum annual principal and interest on outstanding 2010
Bonds and any Reserve Fund Bonds, or 3) 125% of average principal and interest on
the bonds and any Reserve Fund Bonds. The Authority has purchased an
insurance policy to provide reserve funds if needed; therefore, no reserve has been
reflected in these financial statements for this purpose.
In conjunction with the issuance of the 2010 Bonds, the Authority is required to
maintain a Rate Stabilization Fund of $600,000; the Rate Stabilization Fund was
created to help offset or reduce any increases in fees, rates, and other charges to the
users of the water system which was created by the Rate Maintenance Covenant.
In accordance with bond indentures, the Authority has restricted cash and net
position equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the next installment and one-twelfth (1/12) of the
next principal installment.
Pursuant to bond documents, the Authority has also created an Operations Reserve
in an amount equal to three months of operations and maintenance expenses as set
forth in the Authority’s annual budget.
These bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Authority
at par plus accrued interest without a redemption premium.
6. Tax-Exempt Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A
The Authority issued $11,905,000 of tax-exempt water revenue bonds in April 2013,
with annual interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 4.25%. Interest is payable June 1
and December 1, through 2042. The principal is payable on December 1 and
matures in various increments through 2042. The proceeds of these bonds were
used to finance improvements to the water system. This bond issue consists of term
bonds due on December 1, 2023, December 1, 2028, December 1, 2033, December
1, 2036 and December 1, 2042; these bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption at par, plus accrued interest to the redemption date.
As special, limited obligations of the Authority, principal and interest on the bonds are
payable solely from net pledged revenues. Such net revenue includes income
derived from the water treatment facilities and other legally available revenue after
payment of operation and maintenance expenses of the system.
The bond documents include a Rate Maintenance Covenant, which requires the
Authority to establish service rates at a level sufficient to cover operating and
maintenance expenses, as well as 110% of each fiscal year’s debt service
requirements of outstanding Authority bonds.
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Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
G.

Long-Term Debt (continued)
6. Tax-Exempt Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (continued)
A bond insurance policy, which guarantees the scheduled payment of principal and
interest of the bonds was issued by Assured Guaranty Mutual Corporation
concurrently with the issuance of these bonds.
The Authority is required to maintain a Rate Stabilization Fund of $600,000; the Rate
Stabilization Fund was created to help offset or reduce any increase in fees, rates,
and other charges to the users of the water system which was created by the Rate
Maintenance Covenant.
In accordance with bond indentures, the Authority has restricted cash and net
position equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the next installment and one-twelfth (1/12) of the
next principal installment.
Pursuant to bond documents, the Authority has also created an Operations Reserve
in an amount equal to three months of operations and maintenance expenses as set
forth in the Authority’s annual budget.
The bonds maturing on or before December 1, 2023, are not subject to redemption
prior to maturity. The bonds maturing on and after December 1, 2024, are subject to
redemption prior to maturity at the option of the Authority at par plus accrued interest
without a redemption premium.
7. Tax-Exempt Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013C
The Authority issued $940,000 of tax-exempt water revenue bonds in April 2013, with
annual interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 2.25%. Interest is payable June 1 and
December 1, through 2022. The principal is payable on December 1 and matures in
various increments through 2022. The proceeds were used to refund the outstanding
Authority’s 2002 Water Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, purchase
municipal bond insurance, and pay the costs of issuance.
As special, limited obligations of the Authority, principal and interest on the bonds are
payable solely from net pledged revenues. Such net revenue includes income
derived from the water treatment facilities and other legally available revenue after
payment of operation and maintenance expenses of the system.
The bond documents include a Rate Maintenance Covenant, which requires the
Authority to establish service rates at a level sufficient to cover operating and
maintenance expenses, as well as 110% of each fiscal year’s debt service
requirements of outstanding Authority bonds.
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Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
G.

Long-Term Debt (continued)
7. Tax-Exempt Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (continued)
A bond insurance policy, which guarantees the scheduled payment of principal and
interest of the bonds was issued by Assured Guaranty Mutual Corporation
concurrently with the issuance of these bonds.
The Authority is required to maintain a Rate Stabilization Fund of $600,000; the Rate
Stabilization Fund was created to help offset or reduce any increase in fees, rates,
and other charges to the users of the water system which was created by the Rate
Maintenance Covenant.
In accordance with bond indentures, the Authority has restricted cash and net
position equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the next installment and one-twelfth (1/12) of the
next principal installment.
Pursuant to bond documents, the Authority has also created an Operations Reserve
in an amount equal to three months of operations and maintenance expenses as set
forth in the Authority’s annual budget.
The bond is not subject to redemption prior to the maturity date.
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Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
H.

Long-term Liability Activity Schedules
Long-term liability activity for 2016 was as follows:

1998 assessment obligation note
2003 refunding revenue bonds
2007 refunding revenue bonds
2010 tax-exempt revenue bonds
2010 taxable revenue bonds
2013 tax-exempt revenue bonds
2013 tax-exempt refunding
revenue bonds
Unamortized bond premiums
Unamortized bond discounts
Total

1/1/16

12/31/16

Due

Beginning
Balance

Ending
Balance

Within
One Year

Additions

Reductions

1,386,907
1,585,000
635,000
4,570,000
14,650,000
11,905,000

-

(76,085)
(505,000)
(205,000)
(860,000)
-

690,000
170,110
(132,850)
35,459,167

-

(90,000)
(35,076)
4,920
(1,766,241)

1,310,822
1,080,000
430,000
3,710,000
14,650,000
11,905,000
600,000
135,034
(127,930)
33,692,926

80,231
535,000
210,000
890,000
95,000
1,810,231

Long-term liability activity for 2017 was as follows:
1/1/17
Beginning
Balance
1998 assessment obligation note
2003 refunding revenue bonds
2007 refunding revenue bonds
2010 tax-exempt revenue bonds
2010 taxable revenue bonds
2013 tax-exempt revenue bonds
2013 tax-exempt refunding
revenue bonds
Unamortized bond premiums
Unamortized bond discounts
Total

Additions

Reductions

1,310,822
1,080,000
430,000
3,710,000
14,650,000
11,905,000

-

(80,232)
(535,000)
(210,000)
(890,000)
-

600,000
135,034
(127,930)
33,692,926

-

(95,000)
(35,077)
4,921
(1,840,388)
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12/31/17
Ending
Balance
1,230,590
545,000
220,000
2,820,000
14,650,000
11,905,000
505,000
99,957
(123,009)
31,852,538

Due
Within
One Year
84,604
545,000
220,000
920,000
95,000
1,864,604
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Detailed Notes on All Funds (continued)
I.

Debt Service Schedules
Aggregate debt service requirements at December 31, 2017, were as follows for the
Authority:
Principal
Interest
Total
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2028
2033
2038
Total

IV.

2027
2032
2037
2042

1,864,604
1,139,215
1,144,077
879,204
919,611
4,710,048
5,398,832
6,850,000
8,970,000
31,875,591

1,576,739
1,504,358
1,459,496
1,414,369
1,374,262
6,219,122
4,922,140
3,277,480
1,190,449
22,938,415

3,441,343
2,643,573
2,603,573
2,293,573
2,293,873
10,929,170
10,320,972
10,127,480
10,160,449
54,814,006

Other Information
A.

Risk Management
The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
The Authority has joined together with other special districts in the State to form the
Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool (“the Pool”), a public entity risk pool
currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for member
special districts. Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three
fiscal years.
The Authority pays annual premiums to the Pool for liability, property, public officials’
liability and workers compensation coverage. In the event aggregated losses incurred by
the Pool exceed amounts recoverable from reinsurance contracts and funds accumulated
by the Pool, the Pool may require additional contributions from the Pool members. Any
excess funds which the Pool determines are not needed for purposes of the Pool may be
returned to the members pursuant to a distribution formula.
The Authority carries commercial insurance coverage for other risks of loss. Settled
claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

B.

Intergovernmental Agreements
1.

Interconnect
The Authority and Eagle River Water and Sanitation District (the “District”)
entered into an intergovernmental agreement (“IGA”) in 1994 to construct an
interconnect between their two water systems to enable the transfer of water
between the parties for the purposes of achieving operational flexibility. In
accordance with the IGA, the deliveries between the two systems are to be
measured daily (net distribution of water) with the net amount owed by either
party to the other to be recorded by the owing party at a rate equal to 75
percent of the then current water rate charges by the owing party.
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Other Information (continued)
B.

Intergovernmental Agreements (continued)
1.

Interconnect (continued)
The intent of the parties is to provide long-term service to each other through the
availability of peak use season and emergency supplemental water supply. The
agreement provides for a payment calculation year of May 1 to April 30. If at the
end of the payment year there is a net distribution of water to one of the parties
that party shall make payment to the other party. It should be noted that
historically towards the end of each payment year (April 30) the system is run to
create a zero balance outstanding, such that no payment is due to or from either
party. For the payment years ended April 30, 2017 and 2016, the balance
outstanding was $0.
The value of water distributed by the District to the Authority through the
interconnect was $111,489 and $34,703 during the year ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively. As the system is brought to a zero balance by the
end of each payment year (April 30), the District has chosen to forgo immediate
payment and carry this receivable forward. The District reserves the right to
request payment from the Authority at any time in the future.

2.

Management and Operations Agreement
Through an agreement, the District provides administration, operations,
accounting and maintenance services to the Authority. The District bills
customers for the water service provided and collects and remits the monies to
the Authority. Additionally, the District provides capital program management
services, which are eventually capitalized by the Authority as part of the cost
basis of the completed facility. Costs incurred during 2017 under the terms of this
agreement amounted to $4,445,480 and $3,620,527 for operating and billing
expenses, and $469,291 and $292,147 for capitalized management services,
totaling $4,914,771 and $3,912,674 during the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. Outstanding management fees due to the District as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016 totaled $837,144 and $3,630, respectively.
Additionally, there was $0 and $163,351 related to management fees due to the
Authority as a result of the annual cost study adjustment as December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. There were other outstanding payables, for operation
services, due to the District as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 totaling $172,916
and $228,184, respectively. As of December 31, 2017 there was $1,278,783 due
from the District, for water service billed, included in the $1,597,656 accounts
receivable balance.

3.

Ground Lease
On April 30, 1985, the Authority entered into a lease agreement with the Town of
Avon for the land upon which the water treatment facility is located. The term of
the lease is for 99 years. Minimal consideration for the lease was paid in
advance. In addition, the Town of Avon has reserved the right to use the
airspace above the water treatment facility for construction of municipal facilities.
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Other Information (continued)
C.

Commitments and Contingencies
1.

Federal and State Grants and Financial Sources
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit
and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any
disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although
the Authority expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

2.

Construction Commitments
The Authority had two significant contract commitments at December 31,
2017. Both commitments are with JR Filanc for booster pump upgrades and
water treatment upgrades, with remaining amounts of $386,957 and
$689,593, respectively.

V.

Subsequent Events
Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 31, 2018, the date these financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Funds Available
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual With Reconciliation to GAAP Basis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended 2016)
2017
Original
Budget

Revenues:
Water service fees
Investment income
Plant investment fees
Water storage fees
Proceeds from issuance of bonds
Principal collections of notes receivable
Interest credit - Build America Bonds
Other
Total Revenues

Final
Budget

Actual

Final Budget
Variance
Positive
(Negative)

2016

Actual

11,006,477
65,596
1,668,938
9,900,000
6,284
291,705
46,000
22,985,000

11,006,477
65,596
1,668,938
9,900,000
6,284
291,705
46,000
22,985,000

11,650,595
136,508
1,050,991
6,284
292,175
65,873
13,202,426

644,118
70,912
(617,947)
(9,900,000)
470
19,873
(9,782,574)

11,140,459
95,809
760,056
1,405,763
5,960
291,862
45,171
13,745,080

904,745
528,000
361,000
1,793,745

904,745
528,000
361,000
1,793,745

1,120,145
520,423
314,512
1,955,080

(215,400)
7,577
46,488
(161,335)

850,358
625,388
331,228
1,806,974

Water Distribution:
Management contract
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Subtotal - Water Distribution

1,181,118
316,510
250,000
1,747,628

1,181,118
316,510
250,000
1,747,628

1,396,781
306,303
342,637
2,045,721

(215,663)
10,207
(92,637)
(298,093)

1,181,118
301,372
306,045
1,788,535

Other Operating:
Utilities
Chemicals and supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Outside services
Subtotal - Other Operating

25,000
993,500
339,745
1,358,245

25,000
993,500
339,745
1,358,245

13,670
849,375
328,688
1,191,733

11,330
144,125
11,057
166,512

16,771
25,159
923,474
168,182
1,133,586

General and Administrative:
Insurance
Legal - General
Legal - Water rights
Engineering
Consulting
Management and accounting
Conservation awareness
Directors' fees and expenses
Watershed projects
Other
Subtotal - General and Administrative

110,000
120,000
421,500
117,000
25,000
1,705,960
20,000
15,500
50,000
406,665
2,991,625

110,000
120,000
421,500
117,000
25,000
1,855,960
20,000
15,500
50,000
406,665
3,141,625

113,819
49,853
252,108
70,976
11,907
1,946,933
11,274
11,559
50,000
10,970
2,529,399

(3,819)
70,147
169,392
46,024
13,093
(90,973)
8,726
3,941
395,695
612,226

114,066
67,450
314,638
35,483
12,450
1,606,949
14,863
10,934
50,000
36,064
2,262,897

Expenditures:
Water Treatment:
Management contract
Utilities
Chemicals and supplies
Subtotal - Water Treatment

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Funds Available
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual With Reconciliation to GAAP Basis
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended 2016)
(Continued)
2017
Original
Budget

Final Budget
Variance
Positive
(Negative)

2016

Final
Budget

Actual

1,810,232
1,639,671
2,000
3,451,903

1,810,232
1,639,671
2,000
3,451,903

1,810,232
1,716,710
2,525
3,529,467

(77,039)
(525)
(77,564)

1,736,085
1,700,212
2,983
3,439,280

2,898,854
2,898,854

2,898,854
2,898,854

3,055,924
3,055,924

(157,070)
(157,070)

5,272,380
5,272,380

14,242,000

14,392,000

14,307,324

84,676

15,703,652

8,743,000

8,593,000

(1,104,898)

(9,697,898)

(1,958,572)

Funds Available - Beginning of Year

10,906,040

10,906,040

12,709,830

1,803,790

14,668,402

Funds Available - End of Year

19,649,040

19,499,040

11,604,932

(7,894,108)

12,709,830

Expenditures (continued):
Debt Service:
Principal payments
Interest payments
Paying agent fees
Subtotal - Debt Service
Other:
Capital outlay
Subtotal - Other
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Funds available at year-end is computed as follows:
Current assets
Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term obligations

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
Contributed assets from developers
Change in patronage dividends receivable
Collection of notes receivable - Principal
Depreciation
Amortization of bond premiums, discounts, and deferred refunding costs
Debt principal payments
Capitalized assets
Prior year capitalized assets expensed in the current year
Capitalized interest
Change in other long-term payables (interconnect)
Change in Net Position - GAAP Basis

Actual

13,231,039
(3,490,711)
1,864,604
11,604,932

13,919,014
(3,019,415)
1,810,231
12,709,830

(1,104,898)
462,607
(4,101)
(6,284)
(4,779,293)
(53,381)
1,810,232
3,055,924
(1,482,132)
28,238
(111,489)

(1,958,572)
24,900
(2,986)
(5,960)
(4,965,517)
(53,381)
1,736,085
5,272,380
(73,571)
121,929
149,839

(2,184,577)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Schedule of Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
December 31, 2017

Year Ending
December 31,
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028

1998 Assessment Obligation Note
Payable to Eagle Park Reservoir Company
Original Principal - $2,216,574
Interest Rate - 5.45%
Principal Due
Interest Due
September 16
September 16
Total
84,604
89,215
94,077
99,204
104,611
110,312
116,324
122,664
129,349
136,399
143,831
1,230,590

67,067
62,456
57,594
52,467
47,060
41,359
35,347
29,007
22,322
15,272
7,840
437,791

151,671
151,671
151,671
151,671
151,671
151,671
151,671
151,671
151,671
151,671
151,671
1,668,381

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Schedule of Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
December 31, 2017

Year Ending
December 31,
2018

2003 Water Refunding Revenue Bonds
Original Principal - $5,830,000
Interest Rate - 2.00% to 3.80%
Interest Due
Principal Due
June 1 and
December 1
December 1
Total
545,000
545,000

20,710
20,710

565,710
565,710

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Schedule of Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
December 31, 2017

Year Ending
December 31,
2018

2007 Water Refunding Revenue Bonds
Original Principal - $2,040,000
Interest Rate - 3.70% to 4.00%
Interest Due
Principal Due
June 1 and
December 1
December 1
Total
220,000
220,000

8,360
8,360

228,360
228,360

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Schedule of Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
December 31, 2017

Year Ending
December 31,
2018
2019
2020

2010 Tax-Exempt Water Revenue Bonds
Original Principal - $8,695,000
Interest Rate - 2.50% to 4.00%
Interest Due
Principal Due
June 1 and
December 1
December 1
Total
920,000
950,000
950,000
2,820,000

112,800
76,000
38,000
226,800

1,032,800
1,026,000
988,000
3,046,800

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
E6

DRAFT

Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Schedule of Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
December 31, 2017

Year Ending
December 31,
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039

2010 Taxable Water Revenue Bonds
Direct Pay Build America Bonds
Original Principal - $14,650,000
Interest Rate - 5.36% to 6.52%
Interest Due
Principal Due
June 1 and
December 1
December 1
Total
545,000
560,000
580,000
600,000
620,000
645,000
670,000
695,000
720,000
745,000
775,000
805,000
840,000
875,000
915,000
950,000
995,000
1,035,000
1,080,000
14,650,000

895,214
895,214
895,214
895,214
865,996
835,975
804,881
772,715
739,477
702,273
663,627
623,540
582,010
539,039
488,524
436,054
381,303
324,271
264,631
202,710
137,856
70,393
13,016,131

895,214
895,214
895,214
1,440,214
1,425,996
1,415,975
1,404,881
1,392,715
1,384,477
1,372,273
1,358,627
1,343,540
1,327,010
1,314,039
1,293,524
1,276,054
1,256,303
1,239,271
1,214,631
1,197,710
1,172,856
1,150,393
27,666,131

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Schedule of Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
December 31, 2017

Year Ending
December 31,
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041
2042

2013A Tax-Exempt Water Revenue Bonds
Revenue Bonds
Original Principal - $11,905,000
Interest Rate - 2.50% to 4.25%
Interest Due
Principal Due
June 1 and
December 1
December 1
Total
130,000
150,000
165,000
180,000
195,000
210,000
230,000
250,000
275,000
305,000
325,000
360,000
390,000
410,000
445,000
490,000
540,000
585,000
630,000
1,805,000
1,880,000
1,955,000
11,905,000

462,094
462,094
462,094
462,094
458,844
455,094
450,969
444,894
438,312
431,225
423,462
415,025
404,712
393,275
381,087
367,587
352,962
335,537
316,625
295,800
274,200
250,800
225,600
153,400
78,200
9,195,986

462,094
462,094
462,094
592,094
608,844
620,094
630,969
639,894
648,312
661,225
673,462
690,025
709,712
718,275
741,087
757,587
762,962
780,537
806,625
835,800
859,200
880,800
2,030,600
2,033,400
2,033,200
21,100,986

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Schedule of Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
December 31, 2017

Year Ending
December 31,
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

2013C Tax-Exempt Water Refunding Refunding Bonds
Revenue Bonds
Original Principal - $940,000
Interest Rate - 2.00% to 2.25%
Interest Due
Principal Due
June 1 and
December 1
December 1
Total
95,000
100,000
100,000
105,000
105,000
505,000

10,494
8,594
6,594
4,594
2,362
32,638

105,494
108,594
106,594
109,594
107,362
537,638

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Rate Maintenance Covenant
Five Year Comparison
December 31, 2017
(Unaudited)

Net Revenue Compared to Debt Requirements
$9,000,000
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$-

Net basis available for debt service
Actual annual debt service

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Year

Rate Maintenance Covenant Ratio
3.00
2.50

Ratio

2.00
1.50

Covenant Ratio

1.00

Required Covenant Ratio

0.50
2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Year

Per the bond covenants, the Authority is to assess a fee to cover operations and maintenance and 110% of debt service.
2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

8,881,236

10,156,965

10,550,610

11,290,298

11,539,107

605,321
26,062
288,415
81,659
600,000
10,482,693

302,815
24,899
290,609
51,652
600,000
11,426,940

910,888
31,081
291,235
38,738
600,000
12,422,552

2,165,819
95,809
291,862
42,509
600,000
14,486,297

1,050,991
136,508
292,175
62,114
600,000
13,680,895

13,823,834

13,564,674

13,997,481

13,663,068

15,725,554

(1,682,104)
(4,664,705)
(577,432)
6,899,593

(1,798,661)
(4,703,635)
(451,287)
6,611,091

(1,760,244)
(4,848,553)
(483,445)
6,905,239

(1,631,664)
(4,965,517)
(557,065)
6,508,822

(1,741,855)
(4,779,293)
(748,778)
8,455,628

Net basis available for debt service

3,583,100

4,815,849

5,517,313

7,977,475

5,225,267

Actual annual debt service

3,055,797

3,290,997

3,276,277

3,290,462

3,304,947

Covenant Ratio

1.17

1.46

1.68

2.42

1.58

Required Covenant Ratio

1.10

1.10

1.10

1.10

1.10

Operating revenue
Plus:
Plant investment fees and water storage fees
Investment income
Interest credit - Build America Bonds
Other non-operting revenues
Rate stabilization funds
Total revenues available for debt service
Expenses
Less:
Interest expense
Depreciation
Major capital additions
Total expenses available for debt service

Rate Maintenance Covenant: The Authority's Series 2010 A&B and 2013 A&C bonds include a Rate Maintenance Covenant sufficient revenues
to pay: (i) Operation and Maintenance Expenses, (ii) 110% of each Fiscal Year's Bond Requirements of the Bonds, (iii) an amount equal to
current costs of improvements to the System, excluding major capital additions, made in the ordinary course of business, (iv) any
amounts required to meet then existing deficiencies pertaining to any fund or account relating to the Net Revenues or any securities
payable therefrom, and (v) 100% of any account relating to the Net Revenues or any securities payable therefrom, and Policy Costs
then due and owing.
The above Rate Maintenance Covenant is tested annually. It is the Authority's policy to use unrestricted cash ($5,932,045 at
December 31, 2017) to meet the Rate Maintenance Covenant if necessary.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Single Family Equivalents (SFEs) in Service
Ten Year Comparison
December 31, 2017
(Unaudited)

Single Family Equivalents (SFEs)

18,000
16,000
14,000

Bachelor Gulch

12,000

Cordillera

10,000

Arrowhead

8,000

Berry Creek

6,000

Edwards

4,000

Eagle-Vail

2,000

Beaver Creek

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Avon

Year

Avon
Beaver Creek
Eagle-Vail
Edwards
Berry Creek
Arrowhead
Cordillera
Bachelor Gulch
Total SFEs
Percent increase

2008
3,760
2,731
2,362
2,814
1,148
1,009
1,070
1,052
15,946
1.75%

2009
3,787
2,776
2,368
2,842
1,161
1,015
1,113
1,050
16,112
1.04%

2010
3,802
2,781
2,369
2,853
1,163
1,024
1,115
1,054
16,161
0.30%

2011
3,799
2,790
2,374
2,859
1,164
1,020
1,111
1,061
16,178
0.11%

2012
3,814
2,801
2,374
2,870
1,167
1,025
1,116
1,061
16,227
0.30%

F2

2013
3,831
2,801
2,376
2,874
1,177
1,029
1,127
1,067
16,282
0.34%

2014
3,897
2,807
2,381
2,892
1,186
1,038
1,143
1,065
16,408
0.77%

2015
3,924
2,823
2,390
2,912
1,192
1,048
1,154
1,072
16,515
0.65%

2016
3,687
2,825
2,389
2,934
1,206
1,059
1,183
1,068
16,351
-0.99%

2017
3,847
2,829
2,433
3,202
1,220
1,063
877
1,076
16,547
1.20%

DRAFT

Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Water Statistics
Five Year Comparison
December 31, 2017
(Unaudited)

$14,000,000
$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
Water service fees

$6,000,000

Plant investment fees

$4,000,000
$2,000,000
$0
2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Year

Water service fees
Average single family equivalent (SFE)
Average service fee per SFE
Plant investment fees
Gallons sold (in thousands)
Average single family equivalent (SFE)
Factor (days per year)
Average gallons sold per day per SFE

2013
8,881,236
16,255
546

2014
10,156,965
16,343
621

2015
10,550,610
16,515
639

2016
11,290,298
16,618
679

2017
11,539,107
16,638
694

402,313

337,253

863,905

760,056

1,050,991

1,232,849
16,255
365
208

1,232,177
16,343
365
207

1,196,845
16,515
365
199

1,250,256
16,618
365
206

1,297,193
16,638
365
214
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Customer
Type

Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Top 10 Customers
December 31, 2017
(Unaudited)

Service
Area

1,000
Gallons

Apartment complex
Edwards
Apartment complex
Avon
Hotel / Resort
Beaver Creek
Hotel / Resort / Offices
Avon
Condominiums / HOA
Avon
Hotel / Resort
Beaver Creek
Mobile Home Park
Avon
Ski resort/hotels/offices
Avon
Hotel / Offices
Avon
Condominiums / HOA
Avon
Total - Top 10 Customers
Total - All Other Customers
Total Service Fees

25,779
18,722
21,980
15,063
12,476
12,071
14,119
13,114
8,511
8,071
149,906
1,147,287
1,297,193
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Sales Dollar
Amount

$

$157,308
$130,449
$120,195
$97,178
$96,193
$94,139
$91,084
$88,756
$74,930
$70,237
1,020,469
10,518,638
11,539,107

% of Total
Sales Dollars
1.4%
1.1%
1.0%
0.8%
0.8%
0.8%
0.8%
0.8%
0.6%
0.6%
8.8%
91.2%
100.0%

DRAFT

Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Schedule of Water & Storage Rights
December 31, 2017
(Unaudited)

Most of the in basin consumptive use water rights and the Beaver Creek direct flow water rights
used by the Authority were provided by the member government entities through lease at no cost to
the Authority; the Homestake Reservoir water was obtained through negotiation at no cost; and the
Black Lakes, Green Mountain Reservoir and Wolford Mountain Reservoir water are obtained by
lease and did not involve a purchase. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), only owned water and storage rights are shown on the Authority’s Statement of Net
Position at historic cost, totaling $1,539,404. This cost represents mostly legal expenditures to
establish the Authority’s ability to use these rights to provide water directly to the customers of each
of its members and a small acquisition of new rights. Also in accordance with GASB, the investment
in Eagle Park Reservoir Company Stock, which provides a valuable source of water supply, is not
reflected in capital assets, but is shown in Other Assets at the historic cost of $4,445,917.
Management of the Authority believes the actual value of these water and storage rights used by
the Authority to be greater than historical cost at December 31, 2017.
The appraisal value as of January 1, 2017 (the latest available information), performed by Porzak
Browning & Bushong LLP (Special Water Rights Counsel for the Authority) is recited here solely for
informational purposes.
Water Right
Investment in Eagle Park
Reservoir Company
Homestake Reservoir
Black Lakes Lease
Green Mtn. Res. contract
Wolford Mtn. Res.
contract
In-basin consumptive use
Beaver Creek (summer)
Beaver Creek (winter)
TOTAL

Quantity
(a.f.)
599

Price per
a.f.
$35,000

Historical
Cost
$4,445,917

Appraisal
Value
$20,265,000

256.5
200
548
710.8

35,000
0
1,500
3,625

0
0
0
0

8,977,500
0
822,000
2,576,650

2,083.304
215
17

9,000
9,000
35,000

1,539,404
0
0
$5,985,321

18,360,036
1,935,000
595,500
$53,531,186

Water Rights Owned
Eagle Park Reservoir
The Authority owns or has a perpetual contractual right to the water rights in connection with Eagle
Park Reservoir (599 a.f.). Refer to footnote III.F. for additional terms. The value of Eagle Park
Reservoir is based on the Authority’s dedication replacement cost of $35,000 per acre-foot for nonirrigation season in-basin storage. That replacement cost is established by the Authority’s water
dedication policy, which is the basis by which water service is approved for and provided to all new
development in the Authority’s service area.
Homestake Reservoir
The Authority owns or has a perpetual contractual right to the water rights in connection with
Homestake Reservoir (256.5 a.f.). The value of Homestake Reservoir storage is based on the
Authority’s dedication replacement cost of $35,000 per acre-foot for non-irrigation season in-basin
storage. That replacement cost is established by the Authority’s water dedication policy, which is
the basis by which water service is approved for and provided to all new development in the
Authority’s service area.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Schedule of Water & Storage Rights
December 31, 2017
(Unaudited)
(continued)

Green Mountain Reservoir
The Authority owns water related contracts in connection with Green Mountain Reservoir (548 a.f.).
Contract 9-07-60-W0413: This contract was executed on July 17, 1989, for 220 acre-feet
per year. The annual lease payment is $10 per acre-foot, which can be adjusted to cover
operation and maintenance costs if such costs exceed $10 per acre-foot. This lease is for a
term of 40 years (expires July 16, 2029), with an option to renew for an additional 40 years.
By virtue of an assignment from Kensington Partners, Squaw Creek Metropolitan District,
and Cordillera Metropolitan District of 255 acre-feet of water annually from Kensington
Partner's Green Mountain Reservoir Contract No. 4-07-60-W1015, the Bureau is amending
the Authority's Contract 9-07-60-W0413 to include this assigned amount, resulting in a total
of 475 acre-feet under this contract. All of the terms of the Authority's Contract 9-0760W0413 will apply to the entire 475 acre-feet of water per year.
Contract 9-07-60-W0401: This contract was executed by Kensington Partners on January
11, 1989, for 25 acre-feet per year, and it was amended on October 25, 1989, to include an
additional 48 acre-feet per year, for a total of 73 acre-feet of water per year. The annual
lease payment is $10 per acre-foot, which can be adjusted to cover operation and
maintenance costs if such costs exceed $10 per acre-foot. This lease is for a term of 40
years (expires January 10, 2029), with an option to renew for an additional 40 years.
Kensington Partners assigned this contract to Squaw Creek Metropolitan District and
Cordillera Metropolitan District, and they assigned it to the Authority on March 25, 2004.
The Bureau approved the assignment to the Authority effective October 4, 2010.
Green Mountain Reservoir contract water value is based on the fact that Green Mountain Reservoir
is a finite pool, that there are no new contracts being let by the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation for this
pool, but also reflecting its lower value compared with Wolford Mountain Reservoir contract water
due to less reliability and transfer issues with the Bureau. The term of the Green Mountain
Reservoir contract is also less than the term of the Wolford Mountain Reservoir contract.
Wolford Mountain Reservoir
The Authority owns water related contracts in connection with Wolford Mountain Reservoir (710.8
a.f.).
Contract CW08011: This contract was executed on February 10, 2009, for 500 acre-feet per
year. The base price was $260.25 per acre-foot for the first year, and annual contract
payments are $260.25 per acre-foot, but they can be increase each year up to the amount
of increase in the Consumer Price Index plus New Growth Index. It is for an initial term of
75 years (expiring February 9, 2084), with a right of first refusal at the end of the initial term
on the same terms at which the River District is offering similar supplies to other municipal
water providers.
Contract CW02020: This contract was executed by the Squaw Creek Metropolitan District
on December 13, 2002, and it was assigned from Squaw Creek Metropolitan District to the
Authority on June 4, 2004. It is for 200 acre-feet per year, and the initial cost was $105.00
per acre-foot, with an annual lease payment is $105.00 per acre-foot, which can be
increased each year up to the increase in the Boulder-Denver Metro Area Consumer Price
Index. It is for an initial term of 40 years (expiring December 12, 2042), with a right to renew
for an additional 35 years.
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Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Schedule of Water & Storage Rights
December 31, 2017
(Unaudited)
(continued)

Wolford Mountain Reservoir (continued)
Contract CW03005: This contract was executed by Traer Creek Metropolitan District on
February 3, 2003, and it was assigned from Traer Creek Metropolitan District to the
Authority on April 16, 2003. It is for 10.8 acre-feet per year, with an initial cost of $750.00
per acre-foot. The annual lease payment is $20.00 per acre-foot, which can be adjusted
every five (5) years based on the cumulative in the Boulder-Denver Metro Area Consumer
Price Index. It is for an initial term of 40 years (expires February 2, 2043), with a right to
renew for an additional 35 years.
Wolford Mountain Reservoir contract water value is based on a ten (10) year cost at $362.50 per
acre-foot per year, or a total of $3,625 per acre-foot. A ten year lease cost is an approximation of
the purchase value of this water.
In-Basin Consumptive Use
The Authority owns or has a perpetual contractual right to in-basin consumptive use water rights
(693.65 a.f.). In-basin consumptive use credits are valued at the Authority’s dedication replacement
cost of $9,000 per acre-foot of irrigation season water. This replacement cost is established by the
Authority’s water dedication policy, which is the basis by which water service is approved for and
provided to all new development in the Authority’s service area.
Water Rights Leased
In-Basin Consumptive Use
The Authority has leased in-basin consumptive use water rights (1,389.654 a.f.) from its members
and Traer Creek Metropolitan District. This does not include the 302.8 af leased to the Authority
and committed to the fill of Eagle Park Reservoir. The essential terms of the leases are that the
members lease these water rights at no cost to the Authority for so long as the Authority exists and
provides water service to these members. In-basin consumptive use credits are valued at the
Authority’s dedication replacement cost of $9,000 per acre-foot of irrigation season water. This
replacement cost is established by the Authority’s water dedication policy, which is the basis by
which water service is approved for and provided to all new development in the Authority’s service
area.
Beaver Creek
The Authority has leased water rights (232 a.f.) from Beaver Creek. The essential terms of the
lease is that the members lease these water rights at no cost to the Authority for so long as the
Authority exists and provides water service to these members. The Beaver Creek direct flow
summer rights are valued at the Authority’s dedication replacement cost of $8,700 per acre foot of
irrigation season water, and the Beaver Creek direct flow winter rights are valued at the Authority’s
dedication replacement cost of $35,000 per acre foot of non-irrigation season water. These
replacement costs are established by the Authority’s water dedication policy, which is the basis by
which water service is approved for and provided to all new development in the Authority’s service
area.

F7

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Boards of Directors

FROM:

Linn Brooks

DATE:

July 18, 2018

RE:

Update on Key Performance Indicators and Report to the Boards

Water and wastewater utilities are shining examples of the mantra “you can’t manage what you can’t
measure.” Stringent regulations and requirements mean that tracking and data gathering are part of the
everyday duties of most employees.
Staff in nearly every department tracks various data points at a defined frequency for a variety of reasons.
Such data helps with budgeting, ensuring regulations are met, tracking utility use, managing water use
and others. It also helps staff with benchmarking (comparing the District, Authority to other similar utilities)
and tracking metrics (determining how the District, Authority compare to themselves year after year).
The American Waterworks Association compiled data from 129 water, wastewater, and combined utilities
to produce its 2017 American Waterworks Association Utility Benchmarking Performance Management
for Water and Wastewater book. This guidance manual includes key performance indicators (e.g.,
benchmarks), formulas to calculate these benchmarks, and the 25th, median, and 75th quartiles based on
the data from the 129 utilities that submitted their data in a variety of categories.
Staff is using the manual as a guide for comparison to other utilities, as well as to choose relevant,
meaningful benchmarks on which to report to the boards, as not all of the AWWA key performance
indicators are relevant to the District and Authority. Staff will present its findings in the fall; therefore,
board input on the proposed benchmarks and metrics would be helpful to ensure we’re on the right track.
The most recent benchmarking and metrics report to the boards was presented in 2012, which
interestingly was another dry year. Many changes within the organization have occurred since then, in
addition to changes in the service area; therefore, the previous report is being considered for guidance,
but is not being used as a template for the current report.
Below are the proposed benchmarks and metrics for your review and discussion at the board meetings. If
you would like additional information on any of these key performance indicators prior to the meeting,
please let us know.
AWWA Benchmark: ^
ERWSD Metric: +

Regulatory Compliance
Compliance Rate for Water = % of days in compliance ^
ERWSD Voluntary Water Quality Goals+ (Turbidity, Chlorine, Disinfection Byproducts)
Compliance Rate for Wastewater = % of days in compliance ^
Regulation 85 Compliance for Wastewater – Total Inorganic Nitrogen^

Update on Key Performance Indicators and Report to the Boards
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Regulation 85 Compliance for Wastewater – Total Inorganic Phosphorus^
Number of Regulatory-Driven Tests per Year for Laboratory+ (indicator of increasing regulations)
Customer Experience
Service disruptions – water^
Average time to address water service disruptions ^
Noncapacity sanitary sewer overflows ^
Sanitary sewer backups^
Water Distribution System Integrity: Leaks and Breaks^
Leaks and Breaks per Length of System Pipeline^
Odor Complaints+
Water Quality Complaints per 1,000 accounts^
Residential Service Charges ^
Typical Monthly Water Bill
Typical Monthly Wastewater Bill
Average Monthly Residential Water Bill
Service Cost Affordability^
Water Service Affordability
Wastewater Service Affordability
Typical Monthly Water Bill^
Typical Monthly Wastewater Bill^
Average Residential Water Bill for 1 month of service ^
Average Residential Wastewater Bill for 1 month of service ^
Water Service Affordability as a % of the median household income ^
Wastewater Service Affordability as a % of the median household income^
Media Presence+
Stakeholder Consultation^
Fiscal and Financial Responsibility
Capital Rollovers+
System Inspection (% of network inspected annually) ^
Bond Rating^
System Inspection^
Debt Service Ratio^
Operating Ratio – District Sewer Fund^
Operating Ratio – District Water Fund^
Operating Ratio – Authority ^
Wastewater Treated per Employee + Cost ^
Water Treated per Employee + Cost^
Preventative Maintenance vs. Corrective Maintenance – Field Operations^
Preventative Maintenance vs. Corrective Maintenance – Water ^
ILI ^
Sustainability/Water Demand Management
Total Energy Use ^
Energy Use per Volume of Drinking Water Processed ^
Energy Consumption for Water Treatment^
Energy Use per Volume of Wastewater Treated^
Energy Consumption for Wastewater Treatment ^
Water Use per SFE+

Update on Key Performance Indicators and Report to the Boards
Employee Experience
Number of employees using each housing option+
Employees per District-controlled housing unit+
Employee Engagement Score+
Employee Turnover – compared to Colorado utilities, resort communities+
Employee Turnover^
Number of Full-Time Equivalents (past five years)+
Number of Full-time Equivalents^
Safety Statistics+
Overtime per Employee by Department+
Housing Program
Utilization of Housing Program Options
Housing Units per Employee
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MEMORANDUM
TO:

Boards of Directors

FROM:

Linn Brooks, General Manager

DATE:

July 19, 2018

RE:

GM Report

Board Member
Orientation

Staff and consultants have scheduled meetings with new District Board Director,
Timm Paxson, to present information on water rights, the structure and operations
of the District and pertinent infrastructure information.

Eric Kuhn’s
Retirement

A retirement party was hosted by the Colorado River District for outgoing Executive
Director Eric Kuhn on Tuesday. On behalf of the District and Authority, Tom
Allender and I attended this lovely event, held out doors on the banks of the
Colorado River at the River District offices. Dennis Gelvin also made an
unexpected appearance.

Property Management
Options

In anticipation of 21 new units coming online at Stillwater, the staff housing
committee (James Wilkins, Melissa McLoota, Linn Brooks) is considering options
for the expansion of property management services. To support our efforts, we are
preparing a request for proposals from third party property management firms. We
expect to have a recommendation for the board by the end of the year.

Dry Year 2018

As you may have noticed, the monsoon conditions that were predicted for the end
of June and July have not materialized. Although humidity is close to being
conducive for monsoon conditions, it has been hovering just below the threshold.
This condition does not appear as though it will change before the end of July. In
response, I have asked Len Wright to start to look at hydrologic conditions in
anticipation of having to more actively manage stream flows at some point this
summer. Brian Tracy and the water department have completed an update of the
standard operating procedure for low flow operations, which generally uses the
District’s system complexity to move diversion points downstream to minimize our
impacts to streamflows and the aquatic environment.

Wildfire and Power
Outage Emergency
Scenario

District staff experienced an unplanned emergency scenario when an actual
wildfire, started by lightning in the Wolcott area, threatened the main power feed to
the valley the evening of July 8. The incident command system was invoked and
one of the first actions of the emergency response group was to call a water supply
emergency throughout the District and Authority service areas. Fire crews got the
fire under control before midnight on the 8th and we called off the water supply
emergency the following morning and concluded our response.
This real time event served as an excellent dry run for emergency response to
wildfire, with associated water and wastewater operations impacts. Earlier this
week, managers and supervisors walked through a table top exercise on virtually
the same scenario, in order to plan and develop additional response plans and
identify action items to improve our response to a potential future emergency and to
practice the coordination that would be required with other agencies.

GM Report
Colorado Water
Congress Summer
Conference
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The Colorado Water Congress’ Summer Conference is being held at the Hotel
Talisa in Vail this year, Wednesday August 22 – 24. Wednesday is generally work
sessions on technical topics, Thursday and Friday topics are on more general and
policy related issues. The Thursday conference day conflicts with our board
meeting. Highlights this year include a gallery exhibition on the evolution of
Colorado’s water infrastructure and a keynote address on the evolution of water
policy, a candidate’s forum for various state and federal elected positions up for
election in November, an overview of federal environmental and water policy
legislation and drought implications for Colorado river water policy.
As always, I encourage board members and staff to attend this excellent water
conference. If you are interested, please contact Carol who will get you registered.

OPERATIONS MONTHLY REPORT
July 2018
INFORMATION ONLY
WATER SUPPLY

RESERVOIR UPDATES: 7/16/18
Reservoir

Eagle Park
Black Lake 1
Black Lake 2
Homestake
Green Mountain
Wolford

Physical
Capacity
(AF)

3,301
527
98
42,881
153,639
65,993

Current
Storage (AF)

Discharge
(CFS)

3,245
527
98
41,815
147,083
66,420

0.4
0
0
net 0
net 76
net 84

Previous Month
Change in
Storage (AF)

Comments

+41
0
0
+1,115
+14,340
-2,840

Releasing
Full
Full
Filling
Releasing
Releasing

In response to the Shoshone Call, East Fork Pump Station (EFPS) was shut down on June 28. A slow
release from Eagle Park Reservoir (EPR) was initiated on July 10 to account for evaporative loss in the
reservoir.
STREAMFLOW (CFS)

Gage Location

Instantaneous
Discharge
(CFS)
7/16/18

Gore Creek above Red Sandstone

42

Eagle River below AWWTP

153

Eagle River below Gypsum

196

Record
Streamflow
Low/High
July 16
29 (2002)
579 (2011)
89 (2002)
1810 (2011)
147 (2002)
3270 (1995)

Instream Flow
Water Right
Level (CFS)

ISF Season

22

May - Sept

85

May - Sept

130

May - Sept

July streamflows were below normal. Precipitation has been below normal and air temperatures have
been above normal.

COLORADO RIVER DATA

Lake Powell water level is at 3,607 feet elevation as of July 15, and is at 51% of its storage capacity. Lake
Mead water level is at 1077 feet as of June 15, and is at 38% of its storage capacity.
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RIVER CALLS
Shoshone Call was placed on June 28.

LOCAL NEWS
I-70 West Vail Pass Auxiliary Lane Project

Siri Roman

The Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) are
currently reviewing the screening criteria and the project success factors. The next technical team
meeting has been postponed from July to August. Siri Roman will provide a more detailed update after
the next meeting.

WATER
Under the guidance of Tom Williamsen, Bob Weaver, and various district staff, the low streamflow
standard operating procedure (SOP) is updated and has been communicated to all water department
staff. There were no major changes; during low streamflows operations staff will move diversions as far
downstream as possible so as to lessen the impacts on the river. The District and Vail Resorts have a
verbal agreement in place to operate the Vail snowmaking line when conditions warrant, moving water
from the Eagle River into Gore Creek to bolster the flows in the Gore Creek should they become low.
The Avon Drinking Water Facility has been running 24 hours a day, which improves water quality, creates
treatment efficiencies, and has less draw on the Eagle River. The Operations Technology and IT groups
have successfully reduced after-hours callouts by roughly 60% year to date. These efforts will continue to
ensure efficient and effective operations.

WASTEWATER & LABORATORY
The wastewater treatment facilities experienced lower flows and loads during the July 4 th holiday week
compared to the past few years.
Siri Roman will be representing the District in a Watershed Based Permitting Panel at the annual Water
Quality Forum Retreat on July 20.

FIELD OPERATIONS
Field Operations staff provided benchmarking data for the key performance indicators that will be
reported to the boards in the fall. This exercise helped clarify better documentation needs and opened the
door to better data gathering and process.
Field Operations continues to participate in the Dry Year Incident Command system:
 Wildland brush mitigation around Authority and District sites.
 Evaluation of asset risk and established priorities.
 Vehicles will soon be equipped with pressurized water pumps to mitigate potential exhaust
combustion in lightweight fuels such as grasses. This is in addition to the fire extinguishers that
are already included in our fleet vehicles.
Field Operations was notified of the valley-wide power outage incident command and began early
preparations before it was canceled.
Distribution
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A water shutdown occurred to tie in new infrastructure at the Edwards Fire Station. In-house emergency
repairs were performed on Red Draw (Cordillera) and on Eagle Drive (EagleVail). The Authority supplied
water for showers for the Ride the Rockies event.
Collection
Collection operations staff resumed cyclical maintenance, jetting programs and televising operations.
Minturn is complete and efforts are now being concentrated in EagleVail. Staff also assisted in gray water
disposal for the Ride the Rockies event. The collection team will be assisting with televising the town of
Avon’s storm water culverts as well as jetting a culvert for the Town of Vail.
Mechanical/Electrical (M/E)
The periodic tanks inspections for all storage tanks in both Vail and UERWA are complete per the annual
schedule.
Fleet/Buildings & Grounds
Small and large jetting trucks have been in and out of service, which is affecting the jetting operations
schedule. Both trucks have undergone repairs, and staff is working to resume the normal jetting schedule
now that they are back in service.

ENGINEERING
WATER FACILITY PROJECTS
Avon Drinking Water Facility (ADWF) Clearwell, Settling, and Hydraulic Improvements

M. Marts

General Project Scope: The ADWF Clearwell, Settling, and Hydraulic Improvements project consists of
significant modifications including wall, baffle and standpipe installation to increase the contact time to
meet disinfection requirements. This project also consists of hydraulic improvements and the installation
of plate settlers to replace the tube settlers that are at the end of their useful life. This project is being
constructed under the construction manager at risk (CMAR) delivery method.
Project Update: Guaranteed maximum price negotiations have been completed for this project and the
team is reviewing submittals. Construction is anticipated to start in sedimentation basins 3 and 4 in midSeptember. Production at the plant will continue with basins 1 and 2 in operation until the annual fall
shutdown in early October. Once the plant shutdown occurs, the clearwell and the remaining two basins
will undergo the planned modifications. Construction is anticipated to be complete by Thanksgiving in
order for the ADWF to return to service.
Radio Telemetry Unit (RTU) System Upgrades

Debbie Hoffman

General Project Scope: This project is a systematic approach to install standardized communication
equipment to increase the reliability of the telemetry system throughout the distribution system (82 sites)
and develop a standard (i.e., non-proprietary) telemetry platform to allow for competitive pricing for
upgrades, replacement, and system maintenance. Implementation is anticipated to occur over a threeyear period with a highly detailed sequence and schedule to limit distribution system disruptions.
Project Update: The preliminary work prior to integrating the new equipment has been completed. The
radios have been installed at six of the ten sites. The remaining four sites will be converted during the
integration and the communications are offline. The integration will commence in Potato Patch on July 23.
Two sites will be converted each week to allow any programming issues to be addressed as they arise
and for operators to get comfortable with the new screen layout. All sites in this segment will be converted
by the end of August.
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Mountain Star Water Storage Tank (WST) Overflow and Venting Improvements

Mark Mantua

General Project Scope: A major project was completed in spring 2017 to rehabilitate five pump stations in
the Mountain Star Subdivision. This allowed for increased pumping rates and increased downloading
through the pump stations to address fire flow limitations. A portion of the pump stations are located
directly above the tanks. It was discovered that in the unlikely event of a control failure, the existing tank
overflows were undersized and could potentially flood the pump stations. Tank venting was also deemed
inadequate for current Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE) criteria. The
remaining budget from the pump station project was carried forward to design improvements for vents,
overflows, and drainage infrastructure at each site.
Project Update: CDPHE granted design approval and the Mountain Star HOA granted a notice to proceed
to the District. The project bid on June 28, and a contract was awarded to the lowest bidder, Velocity
Constructors. Velocity is procuring appropriate bonds. Once bonding is complete, UERWA will issue a
notice to proceed. Contractor is anticipating mobilization in August 2018. Staff is coordinating with
Mountain Star representatives on irrigation demands and possible outdoor watering restrictions, as we
are unable to meet peak irrigation demands with tanks offline.
Edwards Spur Road Waterline

Mark Mantua

General Project Scope: The purpose of this project is to install a new water main, as identified in the
Water Master Plan and in the Hydraulic Modeling efforts. The system requires improvements to increase
capacity and redundancy along the Edwards Spur Road. This project includes approximately 2,500 linear
feet of new water main, bridge and river crossings, PRV vaults and water main blowoffs. The project also
includes a sewer interceptor stub-out for future work. A cost sharing agreement with CDOT is in place to
substantially reduce the overall cost of the water main installation. CDOT roadway improvements and
water main improvements will occur concurrently.
Project Update: CDOT selected construction manager Kraemer North America to assist with design and
complete the work in a CMAR delivery method. The District hired HDR Engineering to complete the water
main design portion of the project. HDR is also the design firm retained by CDOT for the project. The
project is in the design phase and a 30% plan set is under review by all parties. The 30% drawings and
cost estimates are complete, and the design schedule targets mid-August for 60% plan submittal.
Arrowhead Water Storage Tank 1 Rehabilitation

Nikola Nemcanin

General Project Scope: The 1 million gallon (MG) welded steel water tank at Arrowhead is in need of
rehabilitation. The project includes spot repairs on the tank floor to address material thickness loss due to
corrosion, sandblasting and recoating the interior and exterior, and a new tank vent. Bid alternate work
includes some structural steel repairs within the tank.
Project Update: The project is advancing towards the 90% design milestone and the plans and
specifications have been submitted to CDPHE for approval. Internal and external coordination efforts
have begun as this project has a tight completion window; the project needs to begin after irrigation
demands diminish and before winter conditions begin. The project team intends to bid the work in early
August with an anticipated September start date.
WASTEWATER FACILITY PROJECTS
Edwards Wastewater Treatment Facility Aeration Basin Channel and HVAC

Mark Mantua

General Project Scope: The project consists of installation of a channel to reroute flow in the aeration
basins, which will address short-circuiting and improve nutrient removal. It also includes installation of
new make-up air units (MAUs) and miscellaneous electrical and instrumentation improvements.
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Project Update: The Contractor has completed installation of rebar, forms, and structural supports for a
new concrete top slab on the influent pump station. The top slab pour occurred the week of July 15. The
contractor began excavating for stormwater improvements to reduce ponding by the plant’s primary
clarifiers. Electrical work began, including installation of new conduit for HVAC improvements and gas
alarms. Remaining work includes HVAC, stormwater improvements and electrical improvements.
Bridge Road Sanitary Sewer Relocation

Melissa Marts

General Project Scope: This project consists of installation of a sanitary sewer main and manholes
adjacent to Bighorn Road and Interstate 70 in East Vail. Town of Vail is replacing the Bridge Road bridge
using federal grant monies. The existing sewer main runs within the bridge and needs to be replaced.
Project costs will be split 50/50 with town of Vail. A portion of the existing bike trail in this vicinity will be
demolished to allow for the sewer main installation, and the alignment will be relocated away from the
riparian area. Bike trail subgrade will be included in this project to prepare for the final asphalt bike path,
which will be constructed by others later.
Project Update: United Companies completed approximately one third of the work; however, it was
discovered that the gas main serving East Vail is in conflict with the proposed sewer alignment in
numerous locations. The gas main was not correctly located in multiple previous attempts during design
and construction. The design team, construction contractor, and Xcel Energy are working on implementing
a solution that relocates the gas main and makes adjustments to the designed sewer alignment. Project
completion is anticipated by the end of August 2018.
West Vail Sewer Main Improvements

Jeffrey Schneider/Nikola Nemcanin

General Project Scope: This project involves the installation of approximately 1,900 linear feet (LF) of
sewer mainline piping, manholes, and appurtenances in two areas in West Vail along the South Frontage
Road and in easements within adjacent private property. The project is necessary to implement the
operational strategy contemplated in the Wastewater Master Plan, which involves bypassing peak winter
flows to the Avon WWTF from the Vail WWTF. In addition, the District is partnering with the town of Vail to
install Holy Cross Energy underground electric conduit within the South Frontage Road right of way and
replace a small portion of the Gore Valley Trail recreation path.
Project Update: To address the differing site conditions encountered, namely the existing sewer main tiein point being located 7 feet west and 5 feet lower than planned, specialty shoring and excavation
subcontractors mobilized to the site on June 20 to install an engineered shoring system. Meanwhile, the
pipeline contractor mobilized to the area near West Vail Conoco and installed 200 linear feet of sewer
pipeline within a week and placed a temporary asphalt patch on the area. The shoring system consisted
of grouted steel casings drilled to approximately 35 feet in depth, and wooden lagging retaining the earth
around the excavation. The shoring subcontractors demobilized from the site on July 9 and the cast-inplace manhole base was poured on July 11. A portion of the roadway to the east of the shoring system
was reconstructed and paved to shorten the length of the road closure. Pipeline installation continues and
should be completed in late July, with shallow utilities immediately following deep pipeline installation and
roadway reconstruction and paving in early August. The contractor will then remobilize to the second
phase near Conoco for an additional 130 linear feet in the South Frontage Road before passing through
private property. Additional impacts to the public right of way are anticipated in late August at West Gore
Creek Drive.
Avon WWTF Nutrient Upgrades

Melissa Marts

General Project Scope: As identified in the Wastewater Master Plan Update, the Avon WWTF requires
upgrades in order to meet Regulation 85 to reduce the concentrations of nitrogen and phosphorus in the
effluent. These improvements will also allow the staff to bypass flows from Vail WWTF to Avon WWTF
during the peak winter season. This project also includes improvements identified in a 2017 condition
assessment in other process areas throughout the facility. Scope includes the addition of 0.6 million
gallons of aeration basin capacity, a new secondary clarifier, structural modifications to the existing
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aeration basins to remove the existing double-tees and replace with a building structure, a new odor
control study and system, and other improvements throughout the facility.
Project Update: The design effort for the Avon WWTF Nutrient Upgrades was kicked off on June 15 with
the project team consisting of a multi-disciplinary team from Carollo and District wastewater and
engineering staff. A 15-month design duration is anticipated. Staff is beginning early coordination efforts
with local agencies for permitting and land use approvals. In addition, a construction manager at risk
(CMAR) contractor is currently being solicited in a two-step process. The first step, Statements of
Qualification (SOQ), have been received and evaluated. The project team will be moving forward with a
shortlist of two firms, MWH and Moltz, for the second stage which involves a proposal, fee and interview.
CMAR firm selection is anticipated for early September.

MEMORANDUM
TO:

District and Authority Board Members

FROM:

Siri Roman, Wastewater Manager

DATE:

July 17, 2018

RE:

Nutrient Management Strategy
Memorandum of Understanding

Since completing the Nutrient Management Plan and the Wastewater Master Plan in June,
2017, District Staff and our consultants have met with the Colorado Department of Public Health
and the Environment (CDPHE) Water Quality Control Division (WQCD) numerous times to
discuss the District’s nutrient management plan.
Typically, expansion and modification needs for meeting impending nutrient limits are done on a
facility-by-facility basis. This can lead to overly conservative engineering assumptions and often
precludes creative, cost effective solutions. District staff and our consultants broke from
conventional planning and the typical “black and white” analyses to collaboratively develop an
integrated facility nutrient management plan that:
•
•
•
•

Leveraged existing synergies between the District’s three, interconnected wastewater
treatment facilities
Maximized near-term nutrient reductions to the Eagle River basin
Balanced the availability of District resources with the financial impact to rate payers
Helped the District prepare for forthcoming regulatory compliance schedules with
potential options to reasonably spread $105M of improvement project cash flow across
the 20 year planning period

Thankfully, the Division Staff has been supportive and receptive to our proposed approach.
Steve Bushong, of Porzak, Browning & Bushong, determined how to implement our strategy by
drafting a Memorandum of Understanding that was further refined by the Attorney General’s
office.
The result of this extensive collaboration is the attached MOU that was recently signed by Linn
Brooks and Patrick Pftaltzgraff, Director of the WQCD. This MOU provides flexibility for both the
District and the WQCD while also supporting our nutrient management plan. Under this MOU,
the District will be able to implement nutrient control strategies one facility at a time and in the
preferred order proposed by the District. As our permits are renewed, language consistent with
the MOU will be incorporated into each permit’s compliance schedules and fact sheets.

Nutrient Management Strategy
Memorandum of Understanding
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Siri Roman will also be presenting the integrated planning efforts and results at the 2018 Water
Environment Federation Technical Exhibition & Conference (WEFTEC).
Attachments:
• Memorandum of Understanding between the District and the Colorado Department of
Public Health and the Environment Water Quality Control Division
• Integrated Planning between Water Resource Recovery Facilities (WRRFs) Provides a
Cost Effective Road Map for Nutrient Removal

Integrated Planning between WRRFs Provides a Cost Effective
Road Map for Nutrient Removal
Bryan D. Coday1*, Tim Drescher2, Becky Luna1, Parker Newbanks2, Tanja RauchWilliams1, Siri Roman2*, Steve Walker1, Len Wright1
1Carollo
2Eagle

Engineers, Broomfield, CO
River Water and Sanitation District, Vail, CO

*Email:

bcoday@carollo.com and sroman@erwsd.org

ABSTRACT
The State of Colorado has begun adopting the Environmental Protection Agency's Numerical
Nutrient Criteria for wastewater dischargers in a two tiered approach. In Tier 1, water resource
recovery facilities larger than 2 million gallons per day are required to meet total inorganic
nitrogen and total phosphorus concentrations of 15 mg/L and 1 mg/L, respectively, at end-ofpipe on an annual median basis. Under future implementation of Tier 2, nitrogen and
phosphorus discharge concentrations will be further reduced to meet site-specific in-stream
water quality standards. Typically, engineers and planners determine the expansion and
modification needs for meeting such nutrient limits on a facility-by-facility basis. This
manuscript illustrates the economic and non-monetary impacts that were realized by
considering integrated planning between different treatment facilities. Opportunities for
integrated planning that can provide guidance to other utilities who are undertaking nutrient
and capacity related upgrades are highlighted.

KEYWORDS: Nitrogen, Phosphorus, Biological nutrient removal, Technology comparison,
Integrated planning, Nutrient trading, Permitting.
INTRODUCTION
The State of Colorado has begun adopting the Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA)
Numerical Nutrient Criteria (NNC) for wastewater dischargers in a two tiered approach. In Tier
1, water resource recovery facilities (WRRFs) larger than 2 million gallons per day (mgd) are
required to meet total inorganic nitrogen (TIN) and total phosphorus (TP) concentrations of 15
milligram per liter (mg/L) and 1 mg/L, respectively, at end-of-pipe on an annual median basis.
Under future implementation of Tier 2 regulations, WRRFs will receive more stringent total
nitrogen (TN) and TP discharge limits to meet site-specific in-stream water quality standards.
With these new regulatory requirements on the horizon, many facilities in the region have or
will be retaining consulting engineering services for wastewater planning and to assist with the
discharge permit renewal process.
Traditionally, engineers and planners develop wastewater facility plans (or similar) that
recommend expansion and modification needs for meeting impending nutrient limits on a
facility-by-facility basis. This can lead to overly conservative engineering assumptions and
often precludes creative, cost effective solutions for implementing biological nutrient removal
(BNR). As part of a recent project, Carollo Engineers, Inc. (Carollo) and the Eagle River Water

and Sanitation District (ERWSD) broke from conventional planning and the typical "black and
white" analyses frequently used by engineers to collaboratively develop an integrated facility
plan that:
•
•
•
•

Leveraged existing synergies between the ERWSD's three, interconnected WRRFs,
Maximized near-term nutrient reductions to the Eagle River basin,
Balanced the availability of ERWSD resources with the financial impact to rate payers,
and
Helped the ERWSD prepare for forthcoming regulatory compliance schedules with
potential options to reasonably spread $105M of improvement project cash flow across
the 20 year planning period.

This paper presents the wastewater planning approach used by the project team, and generally
summarizes the economic and non-monetary (e.g., in-stream water quality) benefits and
impacts that were realized by considering integrated planning between different WRRFs.
Opportunities for integrated planning that can provide guidance to other utilities who are
undertaking nutrient and capacity related upgrades are highlighted.
Overview of the ERWSD
The ERWSD is located in Eagle County, Colorado and operates three WRRFs in the
neighbouring communities of Vail (2.7 MGD), Avon (4.3 MGD), and Edwards (2.95 MGD)
(Figure 1). The existing service area is relatively small, with 28,000 single family equivalents
(SFE) served by the WRRFs. However, current treatment conditions and future improvements
are largely driven by the touristic nature of the Vail Valley and the world class ski resorts that
the ERWSD serves (e.g., Vail Ski Resort, Beaver Creek Resort). The ERWSD facilities, and
especially the Vail WRRF, therefore experience considerable seasonal variability in influent
flows and loads (2 year profile shown in Figure 2). During peak tourist seasons (e.g.,
Thanksgiving, Christmas, New Year's Eve), the facilities may temporarily treat influent flows
and loads from up to 60,000 residents and visitors prior to discharging to the Gold Medal
Waters of the Eagle River. During spring runoff, the facilities typically experience peak flow
events at reduced influent loads, largely due to inflow and infiltration.

Figure 1. Geographic overview of the ERWSD in Eagle County, Colorado (Map adapted from
2

Google Earth).
Each facility will be required to comply with the Tier 1 end-of-pipe requirements for TIN and
TP starting in approximately 2023. At this time, Vail removes TP effectively, but does not
denitrify. Avon and Edwards achieve sufficient nitrogen removal almost year-round to comply
with the anticipated TIN limit, but do not yet remove phosphorus. All three facilities discharge
into the same watershed and currently have different liquid- and solid-stream treatment
processes.
Vail (upstream) operates in the Phoredox (A/O) process configuration for removal of
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) (no primary clarification) followed by fixed-film
nitrification cells. While not specifically designed for biological phosphorus removal, the
facility has historically experienced excellent incidental phosphorus removal (effluent TP
below 1.0 mg/L). Avon (located between Vail and Edwards) and Edwards (downstream) both
use primary clarification followed by a Modified Ludzack-Ettinger (MLE) process for
complete nitrification and partial denitrification. All three facilities share a connected
collection system (approximately 16 miles) that allows the ERWSD to divert some influent
flows from Vail to Avon and from Avon to Edwards. Primary and secondary solids from Vail
and Avon are also diverted via the collection system to Edwards for solids handling and
digestion.

Figure 2. Vail WRRF Influent Flow and Organic Load Seasonal Variability (2013-2017)
In 2012, the ERWSD completed a Wastewater Facilities Master Plan Update (Frachetti and
HRD, 2012) that laid out a capital improvement plan (CIP) to comply with Tier 1 TIN and TP
effluent limits at all three facilities. The plan included the final recommendation to convert all
three facilities to an integrated fixed-film activated sludge (IFAS) process, while maintaining
the current capacity rating at each facility. In mid-2015, the ERWSD initiated a re-evaluation
of these recommendations (2017 Wastewater Facilities Master Plan [Master Plan Update],
Carollo) to weigh site-specific opportunities at each WRRF that may reduce capital
expenditures, while still meeting permit requirements.
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APPROACH AND RESULTS OF THE INTEGRATED PLANNING PROCESS
The Master Plan Update served to develop a holistic, cost effective, 20-year CIP that considered
how the WRRFs can best operate as a system, rather than evaluating and implementing capital
improvements projects on a plant-by-plant basis. Based on discussion with ERWSD staff, the
CIP was developed to maximize near-term nutrient reductions to the Eagle River basin and
balance the availability of ERWSD resources with the financial impact to rate payers. In order
to meet existing and anticipated future compliance schedules from the CDPHE's Water Quality
Control Division (WQCD) and spread cash flow across the planning period to the extent
possible, the ERWSD undertook the following notable actions:
Combined Solids Handling for all three WRRFs
Prior to commissioning the Master Plan Update, the ERWSD consolidated solids treatment for
all facilities at the Edwards WRRF. This first step towards integrated planning simplified the
future roadmap for identifying and implementing cost-effective solutions related to treatment
capacity and nutrient compliance across the ERWSD. The integration of solids handling among
all facilities also resulted in the following ERWSD-wide benefits:
1. Lower capital and operation and maintenance (O&M) life-cycle costs for solids
handling;
2. Consolidated robust odor control equipment associated with solids handling;
3. Consolidated biosolids hauling from a single facility;
4. Centralized management of nutrient-rich recycle streams; and
5. Made valuable real-estate available at the Vail and Avon WRRFs for other treatment
needs.
Site-specific Analysis of Process Needs and Alternatives Evaluation for Nutrient
Compliance
Each of the three facilities was subjected to an analysis of near-term and long-term capital
improvement needs. This analysis generally followed a three step approach, as summarized in
Table 1 and described below.

Step 1: Site-specific testing of BNR operational strategies. - The project team collaboratively
developed full-scale, site specific testing plans focusing on BNR operational strategies at each
facility. The goal was to build upon previous BNR optimization efforts initiated by ERWSD
staff and inform the decision making process regarding future improvement projects. Results
from full-scale testing were helpful in validating ERWSD staff assumptions regarding the
existing processes and identified unintended consequences that should be considered when
targeting Tier 1 regulatory compliance. For example:
•

•

Through repurposing of existing internal recycle pumping (downstream of the
nitrification cells) at the Vail WRRF, TIN removal was achieved in the existing
unaerated selector in the aeration basins. Full-scale testing indicated that this
operational change may seasonally suffice near-term effluent TIN limits, but also
identified previously unknown hydraulic restrictions for further consideration during
design of BNR improvements.
Full-scale testing of biological phosphorus removal in an aerobic/anoxic/oxic (A2O)
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process configuration at the Edwards WRRFs indicated sufficient carbon was available
in the primary effluent to support biological nitrogen and phosphorus removal for
meeting Tier 1 NNC limits (a common challenge for cold weather facilities in
Colorado). ERWSD staff observations of short circuiting in the Edwards aeration basins
were evaluated by the project team during and after full-scale testing, ultimately leading
to an accelerated improvement project at the end of the Master Plan Update to reroute
flows and more effectively use existing basin volume.

Step 2: Identification of process and O&M needs - Because the ERWSD full-scale tested BNR
operational strategies at their three facilities in Step 1, the technology alternatives comparison
and CIP process was able to better strike an appropriately conservative and creative balance in
increasing site-specific BNR robustness and operational flexibility (see Table 1 for high level
summary of results). Additionally, a condition assessment was conducted on the existing
infrastructure across the ERWSD in order to make holistically sound decisions regarding
potential improvements at each facility.
Table 1. Summary of Results for Site-Specific Analyses
Analysis Step
Vail WRRF
Step 1 - Site specific
Through repurposing of
testing of BNR strategies existing internal recycle
pumping (downstream of
the nitrification cells),
TIN removal was
induced in the existing
aeration basins. Full
scale testing indicated
that this operational
change may seasonally
suffice near-term effluent
TIN limits, but also
identified unknown
hydraulic restrictions for
further consideration.
Step 2 - Identification of • Identification of
process & O&M needs
hydraulic limitations
with full-scale
testing.
• Statistical
identification of noncompliance for
nitrogen after fullscale testing.
• Secondary capacity
expansion for future
flows and loads.
Step 3 - Technology
• Biomag
alternatives comparison • IFAS
to comply with
• MBR
anticipated long-term
• S:Select
nutrient limits
• Aeration basin
expansion
• Tertiary
denitrification filters
w/ carbon addition

Results for Each WRRF
Avon WRRF
Aerated solids retention
time (aSRT) and mixed
liquor recycle (MLR)
control strategies were
evaluated by plant staff
as means to further
stabilize nitrification and
denitrification
performance.

•

•

Edwards WRRF
The existing piping and
step-feed arrangement of
the MLE process made it
possible to convert the
facility into an A2O
process without physical
modifications. Full-scale
testing demonstrated that
the modified facility can
meet near-term TIN and
TP limits at current flows
and loads.

Biological and/or
•
chemical P removal
required.
•
On-site fermentation
or external chemical •
addition to overcome
known carbon
limitation.
•

•

•
•

Aeration basin
process conversion
to A2O and volume
expansion
IFAS
Chemical P backup

•

•
•
•

Improved aeration
system control.
Zone configuration
flexibility.
Aeration basin
modifications and
expansion for
increased firm
treatment capacity.
Sidestream treatment
to mitigate future
centrate TP load.
Aeration basin
expansion in A2O
process
configuration
IFAS
Chemical P backup
Sidestream centrate
treatment
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Step 3: Technology alternatives comparison - Only after completion of site-specific testing and
the condition assessment were larger capital improvement needs defined for maintaining
treatment capacity under the NNC discharge limits. Major industry-relevant technologies were
evaluated, cost proposals acquired, and financial, environmental, social, operational, and
technical criteria relevant to the ERWSD and their customers assessed. Table 1 lists the
technologies considered for each facility, while Table 2 provides a list of comparison criteria
used when evaluating each alternative.
Table 2. Criteria used for the Technology Alternatives Comparison
Economic

Capital Costs
O&M Costs

Environmental

Footprint
Use of Existing Facilities
Chemical safety
Greenhouse Gas impacts
Phosphorus Recovery

Operational / Technical

Operational Complexity
Hydraulic impacts
Automation (i.e., process robustness in case of power loss)
Expandability for future nutrient limits
BNR Reliability
Constructability (maintaining operation during construction)

Social

Regulatory Compliance
Recreation

Evaluation of Potential Capital Improvement Savings through Integrated Facility
Planning
Once the feasible technology alternatives were identified and ranked based on the criteria listed
in Table 2, the project team evaluated ways to leverage the benefits realized through integration
of the three WRRFs - from process, financial, and regulatory perspectives - to support decisions
about where and when capital funds can be most cost-effectively invested to meet future
nutrient limits.

Peak flow sharing
Flow and load projections showed that Avon currently has a larger reserve treatment capacity
than Vail. Knowing this, the project team identified peak influent flow sharing to the Avon
facility as a feasible way to reduce the capital costs of a near-term facility expansion and lower
the risk of near- to mid-term permit violations at the Vail WRRF, where real estate is extremely
costly and access to the liquid stream process is particularly limited. This would also allow the
ERWSD more flexibility when discussing regulatory compliance schedules and the need to
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realistically spread improvement project cash flow across the 20-year CIP (see next section).
Therefore, a collection system model was developed using the Personal Computer Storm Water
Management Model (PCSWMM) to assess the maximum flow that Vail could transfer to
Avon's facility during peak conditions. It was ultimately found that:
• Sufficient influent flow volume could be bypassed from Vail to Avon during peak
conditions to postpone major BNR improvements for over ten years at Vail. This would
allow ERWSD to plan for a single construction project at Vail for meeting the Tier 2
limits instead of multiple projects staggered over the planning horizon.
• The overall benefit to the Eagle River Basin would be more quickly realized (on a
reduced nutrient load basis), as bypassed flows from Vail will be treated for both
nitrogen and phosphorus removal at Avon following the BNR improvement project
starting in 2018.

Nutrient Trading Opportunities
The site-specific analysis of process needs and the alternatives evaluation also considered the
potential viability of alternative effluent limits under various water quality trading scenarios.
The evaluation of alternate effluent limits was conducted by the ERWSD's watershed water
quality consultant using a calibrated watershed model. The analysis was based on the current
understanding of how the CDPHE may implement water quality trading provisions in the nearfuture. It is acknowledged by the project team that since there is little precedence to date that
could provide guidance on acceptable procedures, the results of this evaluation were
preliminary and subject to further coordination with CDPHE. The modeling of nutrient trading
opportunities in the watershed ultimately allowed the ERWSD to:

•
•

•

•

Quantify N and P effluent limits that the ERWSD should prepare for at each facility
under anticipated Tier 2 NNC implementation.
Identify trading scenarios for N and P that can save the ERWSD capital and/or O&M
costs under Tier 1 NNC implementation based on the achievable effluent quality with
the current BNR process and the recommended nutrient technology. For example, the
Vail WRRF may "overtreat" for nitrogen removal (e.g., 7 mg/L as TIN) and allow
capital and/or O&M savings at downstream Avon by saving carbon required for
denitrification (about 15 mg/L TIN). Edwards may not need to significantly remove
nitrogen at all and could save available carbon for biological P removal (about 18 mg/L
TIN).
Project whether the recommended nutrient technology for each facility can also meet
compliance with anticipated long-term Tier 2 NNC. For example, enhanced biological
phosphorus removal (EBPR) coupled with chemical polishing at Vail and Avon may
can reduce the risks of permit violations at Edwards (the facility treating all ERWSD
solids) and possibly avoid the construction of tertiary filtration for phosphorus removal
at any of the three facilities.
Identify beneficial trading scenarios for further discussion with regulators as part of
future permit renewals.

Voluntary Incentive Program for Early Nutrient Reductions
Near the conclusion of the Master Plan Update in 2017, the Nutrient Subgroup of the CDPHE's
main nutrient workgroup introduced the Voluntary Incentive Program (Incentive Program) for
early nutrient reductions. The program allows facilities to make nutrient reductions in exchange
for an extended compliance schedule, which will be applied to the facility's first permit renewal
7

after 2027. The program is performance based, where facilities that reduce effluent nutrient
loads below the Tier 1 limits receive an extended compliance schedule for meeting water
quality based effluent limits (WQBEL) anticipated under Tier 2. The Incentive Program
therefore awards compliance schedule credits based on the facility's ability to discharge
effluent TIN and TP below 15 mg/L and 1 mg/L, respectively. Incentive credits can be earned
for up to a maximum of 10 years for decreasing both nutrients.
The Incentive Program does allow facilities to accrue time under a post-2027 compliance
schedule through trading of incentive credits as part of its nutrient reduction plan. This opens
another opportunity for the ERWSD to maximize synergies between each facility and
potentially earn regulatory incentive credits that could be traded between Vail, Avon, and
Edwards. Participation in the program will be more closely considered by the ERWSD as part
of upcoming BNR improvement projects.

Collaborative Permitting Coordination
At the time of the Master Plan Update, the Vail WRRF was the only facility to have received
a permit compliance schedule for Tier 1 limits. Construction of BNR improvements that
allowed the facility to meet both effluent TIN and TP limits were to be completed by December,
2020. Meeting this compliance schedule would have set-up the ERWSD for two separate
construction projects at the already site-constrained Vail facility; the first for compliance with
Tier 1 limits and second for compliance with future (and not yet approved) Tier 2 limits. For
several reasons, limiting major construction to a single BNR improvement project at the Vail
WRRF was desirable to the ERWSD:

•
•
•

The liquid stream process is located underground, with the majority of secondary
treatment sited beneath an administration building and parking structure.
Construction sequencing at the Vail WRRF is challenging, both because of peak season
flows and loads, and extremely close proximity to its neighbors.
Delayed construction at the Vail facility would allow ERWSD staff to re-evaluate the
maturity of intensification processes when upgrading to meet both Tier 1 and Tier 2
nutrient limits.

To facilitate a single construction project at the Vail WWRF, the ERWSD entered into a
collaborative discussion with CDPHE's WQCD regarding the permit modification process. As
part of the permitting discussion, the ERWSD proposed the following to the WQCD:

•
•
•

Extension of the Vail WRRF compliance schedule beyond that of the Avon and
Edwards facilities (not yet issued by CDPHE). Future BNR improvements at Vail
would be designed for Tier 2 NNC limits.
Implement the proposed BNR improvements in the order recommended in the Master
Plan Update CIP (Figure 3)
Submission of an annual report to the WQCD documenting watershed-wide nutrient
improvements in the Eagle River Basin.

As noted above, this order of improvements is largely possible due to the ERWSD's ability to
bypass additional influent flows from Vail to Avon after improvements to the collection system
(construction started in mid-2018). Sufficient capacity can be added to the collection system
such that the Vail facility can maintain operation at its prevailing influent flows and loads
through the current planning period, eliminating the need for a capacity expansion until the
8

BNR improvements project is initiated.

Figure 3. Implementation Schedule of Proposed BNR Improvements for NNC Compliance.
The proposed sequence of BNR improvements appropriately manages financial impact to rate
payers, is consistent with the ERWSD internal resources and its interconnected WRRFs, and
maximizes near-term environmental benefits in the watershed. Because Avon is the largest
facility and Edwards treats all ERWSD solids, the greatest reduction in near- to mid-term
cumulative nutrient loads to the Eagle River can be realized by implementing BNR
improvements earlier at those facilities (Figure 4). This benefit is further realized when
seasonally bypassing flows from Vail to Avon, which will be treated for both nitrogen and
phosphorus in lieu of phosphorus only. Staggering the capital improvements over time in the
proposed manner is also believed to be reasonable, appropriate, and consistent with applicable
regulations and public policy. Note that permitting discussions between the ERWSD and the
CDPHE were ongoing at the time of this proceedings paper. Relevant updates to the permitting
coordination may be available at the 2018 WEFTEC conference.

(a)
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(b)
Figure 4. Comparison of environmental calculated benefits to the Eagle River Basin for (a)
phosphorus and (b) nitrogen based on order of future potential compliance schedules.
Relevance and Applicability
The ERWSD is in a unique situation that facilitates a close integrated planning approach among
its facilities. This case study illustrates an approach and takeaways that are relevant for other
WRRFs who are in the process to finding cost-effective paths towards compliance with NNC:
1. First, full-scale test (and optimize to the extent possible) biological nitrogen and
phosphorus removal to leverage associated cost-savings for capital improvement needs
and confirm process design criteria;
2. Second, perform a detailed economic and non-economic comparison of industryrelevant intensification technologies with a focus on site-specific needs and
recommendations;
3. Third, consider opportunities for an integrated planning strategy among facilities
located in the same watershed. Nutrient trading and flow diversion between facilities to
handle peak conditions can balance financial impact to facilities and rate payers, and
reduce the risk of permit violations. Collaborative coordination with local and regional
regulatory agencies should be considered with evaluating an integrated planning
strategy.
Based on this planning approach, the project team developed a comprehensive and innovative
plan that benefits the in-stream water quality and balances the availability of ERWSD resources
with the financial impact to their rate payers.
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MEMORANDUM
TO:

Authority Board of Directors

FROM:

Jason Cowles, P.E.

DATE:

July 18, 2018

RE:

July 2018 Engineering Report

Construction Cost Escalation

I have attached a memorandum prepared by Jeff Schneider for your information that
summarizes construction growth and construction cost escalation data from a number of
sources including CDOT’s quarterly Construction Cost Index report. Recent trends indicate that
construction cost escalation is leveling off locally after experiencing rapid increases between
2012 and 2015. Projections for construction growth and cost escalation indicate modest growth,
but as is always the case, uncertainty exists in the projections, primarily due to potential
changes in economic policy, trade tariffs, and labor availability.
Eagle River Village Mobile Home Park Service
At the time of this report, I am not quite ready to share a memorandum regarding the potential to provide
water service to the ERVMHP in Edwards. I hope to provide the Board with more information ahead of
next week’s meeting in the supplemental Tuesday packet.

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Jason Cowles, P.E.

FROM:

Jeffrey Schneider, P.E.

DATE:

July 17, 2018

RE:

Construction Market Conditions and Outlook

Summary of Subject: This memorandum is to provide an update on construction market conditions in 2018
and a summary of data to inform decisions related to the timing of implementing large reservoir projects due to
cost escalation. Resources utilized for this analysis include: the Colorado Department of Transportation
(CDOT) Construction Cost Index (CCI), Engineering News Record (ENR), Dodge Data and Analytics, and the
Associated General Contractors of America (AGCA). Most research locally and nationally predict a
deceleration of construction growth in the near future and cost escalation appears to be leveling off, but much
uncertainty lies within the market and market forecasting.
Discussion and Background: It is difficult to accurately predict construction market conditions. Conditions
vary widely and generally and are often influenced by outside factors. Political policies such as tariffs,
regulations, and funding appropriations can greatly affect construction markets. Economic conditions such as
interest rates and availability of capital have an impact as well. Further, infrastructure sectors, specifically
water/wastewater, can be impacted by local and national factors, for instance, hurricanes and other natural
disasters. For example, severe hurricanes in 2017 had an impact on construction materials and other
resources, and the front range flooding of 2013 reduced local availability for water/wastewater construction
resources.
Construction Cost Data: Utilizing the CDOT CCI, staff focused on data pertaining to Earthwork, Structural
Concrete, and Reinforcing Steel, most applicable to Water/Wastewater Infrastructure construction. The most
recent CDOT CCI data is available for 1st quarter (Q1) 2018, ending March 31, 2018. Of note, the quarterly data
provided by CDOT captures seasonal fluctuations in construction costs and project volume (especially in the
Transportation Sector), for example, Q2 and Q3 costs are typically higher due to more construction activity and
more demand. Figures 1-3 show the CDOT Earthwork, Structural Concrete, and Reinforcing Steel Costs per
quarter, respectively. As the data shows, there have been significant construction cost increases since 2012.
Total percent increase in earthwork costs rose 49% since Q1 2012. Similarly, reinforcing steel (rebar) costs
increased 51% over the same timeframe. But most notably, structural concrete costs rose a whopping 98%
between Q1 2012 and Q1 2018.
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Figure 1: Earthwork Costs per CDOT CCI by Quarter
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Figure 2: Structural Concrete Costs per CDOT CCI by Quarter
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Figure 3: Reinforcing Steel Costs per CDOT CCI per Quarter
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The trendlines on Figures 1-3 show a linear rate of construction cost increases, and do not capture the wild
quarterly fluctuations. CDOT’s CCI report includes an annual percentage change figure, included below as
Figure 4. The data in Figure 4 uses the most recent four quarters of data compared to the previous four
quarters of data. The CCI percentage change clearly suggest that cost escalation appears to level off starting
in 2015 to Q1 2018. Years 2015 and 2016 showed little to negative cost escalation, and since then, more
modest cost escalation occurred in 2017 and in to 2018.
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Figure 4: CDOT CCI Annual Percentage Change (courtesy CDOT)

Dodge Data and Analytics (www.construction.com) typically tracks construction starts by market segments such
as single family housing, multifamily housing, commercial building, manufacturing, public works, and utilities.
Dodge, in their 2018 Construction Outlook publication, predicted a deceleration in growth. This is also tied to a
leveling of construction costs. Dodge predicted a total 3% growth in construction starts, down from 11-13%
growth from 2012-2015. Dodge also predicted 3% growth in the Public Works segment. Uncertainty related to
the purported $1 Trillion infrastructure package awaiting adoption by the federal government may also lead to
short term stagnation but could lead to growth. Also reflected in these numbers are significant disaster recovery
and reconstruction efforts from hurricanes and flooding in 2017.
Tariffs on imported metals has already lead to cost increases for materials. The June edition of ENR stated that
the 25% tariffs on steel imports had a near immediate impact on construction costs, particularly rebar. Certain
firms have reported that rebar pricing has climbed 15-20% in anticipation of the tariffs. Locally, an UERWA
project at the Avon Drinking Water Facility has seen approximately 10% material cost increases due to tariffs
since the project includes a large purchase of stainless steel water treatment process equipment.
Construction costs and resource availability has always been a challenge for our mountain resort community.
With Denver among the fastest growing cities in the United States, rather than pull resources from Denver to do
mountain work, we find ourselves competing with Denver projects for resources. A January 4, 2018 article in
the Denver Post highlighted the bullish nature of the Colorado construction market in 2018. However,
according to a survey by the Associated General Contractors of America, 41% of firms listed labor shortages as
the largest concern in 2018 on a national level. In Colorado, that figure is 56%. One could extrapolate that the
labor shortage concern is larger in mountain resort communities such as ours, particularly where housing
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availability and affordability is scarce. Also according to the ACGA, construction employment figures in
Colorado reported as number of jobs, between January 1990 and March 2018 peaked in March 2018. Further,
percentage change in producer price indexes (PPIs) range from 2.6 to 5.1 for construction related items
between April 2017 and April 2018. In most cases this is a higher growth rate than annual percentage
increases in 2014-2017 calendar years.
Conclusion: The analyzed data from CDOT CCI, AGCA, and Dodge demonstrate rapid growth between 2012
and 2015, little to no increase during the 2015 and 2016 timeframes, followed by more modest escalation
between 2017 and today. Correlating national PPI data and CDOT CCI data shows the local Colorado market
showed considerably higher cost escalation than the rest of the country between 2012 and 2015, and growth on
par with national averages since 2016.
Much uncertainty exists in forecasting construction industry trends. Based on the various data, it suggests that
growth in the industry (including costs) will continue in the near future, but at a more modest rate than in
previous years. Growth and costs are related but independent, as increasing costs can slow growth if available
capital and labor resources do not increase at a similar rate. External factors can and will have a large and
unexpected influence on industry performance.
Please let me know if you have any questions or would like additional information.

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Boards of Directors

FROM:

Diane Johnson, Communications & Public Affairs Manager

DATE:

July 26, 2018

RE:

Communications and Public Affairs Report

Vail Farmers’ Market:
Business is steady at the water station – and is faster or slower-paced depending on Sunday weather.
Rain or thunderstorms drop attendance and cool weather decreases how much water people need, which
is reflected in the stats below. One-on-one connection with community members and guests remains a
highly effective way to engage with folks who use our services. The water station’s success continues to
be due to involvement from across the district, including lab, water, customer service, human resources,
administrative, and engineering employees. The market runs for 17 weeks, from June 17 through Oct. 7.
A comparison of the number of cups and gallons of water dispensed versus previous years is below.
Week
June
rd
3 Sunday
4th Sunday
July
st
1 Sunday
2nd Sunday
3rd Sunday

2015

Number of cups
2016
2017

2018

2015

Gallons of water
2016
2017

2018

1200

1575

1225

675

162

150

115

75

1450

1400

1475

700

154

147

186

59

1250
1500
1250

2150
1700
1400

2400
1775
1275

2175
1850
1250

111
166
123

174
198
170

242
214
147

206
230
135

Eagle River Regional Water Efficiency Plan public outreach
Maureen and Amy have finished giving presentations about the district and authority’s joint draft Eagle
River Regional Water Efficiency Plan. We initiated the public comment period after the June board
meetings. The news release posted on the Vail Daily website on July 2 (attached) and ran in print July 3.
The release drew interest from a reporter with Aspen Journalism, which is committed to covering water
issues, and resulted in a story (attached) that ran July 10 in the Vail Daily (and on AJ’s website). We also
announced the public comment period via legal notice in the Eagle Valley Enterprise (attached), which
ran July 12. Staff delivered 19 presentations to a combined audience of more than 400 individuals, not
including those who watched on television or online. Six presentations were recorded by High Five
Access Media, which airs them on Channel 5 (public access) and online on-demand. Presentations
began April 12, concluded July 24, and were given to Avon and Vail town councils; Arrowhead, Beaver
Creek, Berry Creek, Cordillera, Cordillera Valley Club, EagleVail, and Edwards metro district boards; Vail
Recreation District, Eagle River Watershed Council, and Mountain Star Association boards; Eagle River
Valley State of the River attendees; Town of Vail Sustainable Landscaping Workshop and Lunch with the
Locals attendees; Edwards Rotary Club; Eagle County’s design review team and Planning Commission;
and district staff.
Black Lakes fish stocking:
The district stocked the two Black Lakes with rainbow trout July 6, which was the second (and final)
stocking of this year. The Vail Daily printed our news release about the first (June 8) stocking on June 10.
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Red Canyon 2 Fire
The June 8 wildfire in Wolcott that threatened main power supply lines to eastern Eagle County caused
us to issue a Water Supply Emergency, which was canceled once firefighters mitigated the threat to
power lines. The Vail Daily wrote a follow up story related to ramifications of a prolonged electrical outage
in the valley, which posted July 16 and is attached to this report.
Drought and Colorado River operations
The U.S. Bureau of Reclamation is forecasting the 2018 April through July unregulated inflow to Lake
Powell will be 2.675 million acre feet or 37 percent of average. The forecast is made in the July Operation
Plan for Colorado River System Reservoirs (the 24-month study). Observed unregulated inflow into Lake
Powell for the month of June was 0.883 maf or 33 percent of the 30-year average from 1981 to 2010. The
forecast for July unregulated inflow into Lake Powell is 0.196 maf or 18 percent of the 30-year average.
The Arizona Department of Water Resources and the Central Arizona Project (CAP) held a joint briefing
June 28 on a Lower Basin Drought Contingency Plan. The attached news story reports on the briefing. If
you would like to get in the weeds on the issue, all 71 slides from the briefing are available online. The
two Arizona water entities also planned to meet July 10.The Colorado Water Conservation Board’s flood
and water availability task forces next meets July 24. Drought intensity in Eagle County increased from
D0 and D1, to D1 and D2 on the July 10 drought monitor, which is shown below.

Attachments:
1. July 2 Vail Daily news brief: Draft water efficiency play for upper Eagle River is ready for public
comment.
2. July 10 Vail Daily story: Ebbing water waste.
3. July 12 Eagle Valley Enterprise legal notice: Water efficiency plan public comment period.
4. July 17 Vail Daily story: Eagle County wildfires could have knocked out electricity to thousands.
5. June 29 Tucson.com story: Risks to Lake Mead, Colorado River intensifying greatly, federal
officials say.
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Draft water efficiency plan for upper Eagle River is ready for
public comment
Daily staff reportnewsroom@vaildaily.com

July 2, 2018
VAIL — The draft Eagle River Regional Water Efficiency Plan is available for review by the public, which can submit comments through Monday, July
30.
he plan is a joint effort by the Eagle River Water & Sanitation District and the Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority that outlines actions the
organizations will take to meet increasing regional water demands with available supply into the future in an environmentally and fiscally responsible
manner.
Community members can review the draft plan at the district office in Vail during business hours and anytime online at erwsd.org
(http://www.erwsd.org).
Both the district and the authority are required to have a water efficiency plan on file with the Colorado Water Conservation Board, which is part of the
Colorado Department of Natural Resources. The water conservation board awarded grant funds to the district and authority to assist with plan
development and there must be a period for the public to comment on the proposed plan. This public comment period follows an extensive outreach
process where the plan was presented to nearly 20 community groups. Several of those presentations can be viewed on the High Five Access Media
website (https://www.highfivemedia.org/). Feedback at those presentations has informed the current draft.
All comments received will be considered for integration into the final plan and will be noted in a plan appendix. The district and authority boards of
directors will review the final plan in August and approve its submittal to the Colorado Water Conservation Board, which makes the final determination
that the plan meets state guidelines and accepts it.
To submit comments, contact water demand management coordinator Maureen Mulcahy by email, phone, or mail at mmulcahy@erwsd.org
(mailto:mmulcahy@erwsd.org), 970-477-5402, or 846 Forest Road, Vail, 81657. Written comments are preferred for better tracking and inclusion in the
final plan.
For more information, go to http://www.erwsd.org (http://www.erwsd.org) or call 970-477-5402.
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Ebbing

water waste
Water efficiency plan focuses on reducing outdoor residential
use; public comments accepted through July 30

t

By Heather Sackett
Aspen Journalism

he Eagle River Water & Sanitation District, along
with the Upper Eagle
Regional Water Authority, have released a draft
water efficiency plan, which
sets ambitious goals for reducing waste, despite projected increases in
the region’s population.
The Eagle River Regional Water Efficiency Plan aims to reduce the authority’s total metered water delivery by 430
acre-feet per year, or 8 percent, by 2030.

It aims to reduce total metered water
delivery by the Eagle River Water &
Sanitation District, specifically, by 140
acre-feet per year, or 6 percent, by 2030.
Much of those reductions are expected to come from residential
outdoor water use.
During that same timeframe,
single-family equivalent annual
growth rates in the district and
authority are expected to rise 1.1 percent
and 2.1 percent, respectively.
The district and authority combine to
provide water and wastewater treatment
to towns and residential developments
along the Interstate 70 corridor from

ABOUT
THE PLAN
The draft Eagle
River Regional Water
Efficiency Plan is
open for public review and comments
through Monday,
July 30, and can
be found at www.
erwsd.org.
Denver-based
Element Water
Consulting provided
technical assistance
and more than a
dozen community
groups, including Avon Town
Council, Eagle River
Watershed Council,
Vail Recreation
District and others,
provided feedback
to create the draft.
The plan was
awarded a $50,000
grant from the
Colorado Water
Conservation
Board’s Water
Efficiency Grant
Program in March
2017. The district
and authority
expect to submit
a final plan to the
water board at its
September meeting.

EAGLE RIVER WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT

Ninety-five percent of indoor-use water in the Eagle River Water & Sanitation District
and Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority’s system makes it back to the river after
being treated, but just 30 percent of outdoor water use does the same. That’s why the
Eagle River Regional Water Efficiency Plan focuses on cutting outdoor water waste.

EAGLE RIVER WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT

This chart shows that with previously implemented water
savings measures the Eagle River Water & Sanitation District
and Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority have been able to
reduce the amount of water used per single family equivalent
even as the region’s population has grown. The Eagle River
Regional Water Efficiency Plan aims to expand those demand-management programs.

EAGLE RIVER WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT

The Eagle River Regional Water Efficiency Plan aims to reduce the
Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority’s total metered water delivery by 430 acre-feet per year, or 8 percent, by 2030. The solid line
represents water use with no savings measures.

Vail to Wolcott.
“We are operating in our local
basin, so we can really talk to our
customers about how their water is
used and like now, when we are in a
dry period, how it’s directly related to
the water they see in the river,” said
Diane Johnson, communications
and public affairs manager for the
district.

TWO TYPES OF USERS
The plan breaks water users down
into four categories: residential, commercial, mixed-use and irrigation.
It then sets goals for each category
to become more efficient. Since residential use is the leading water use in
both the district and authority — at
45 percent and 65 percent, respectively — residential customers are a
key focus of the plan.
The plan breaks residential customers down into two types. Type
1 are homes that have more indoor
water use and small outdoor, irrigated areas. Type 2 homes have larger
outdoor areas and typically use more
water for irrigation.
Type 2 customers typically use 2
1/2 times as much water as Type 1
customers, mostly because they have
larger lots with bigger irrigated areas.
This distinction is significant because
95 percent of water used indoors
is eventually returned to the river
after it’s treated, but outdoor water
use is mostly consumptive — just 30
percent makes its way back to the
streams.

Therefore, focusing efficiency
efforts on Type 2 customers could result in more water savings. The plan
sets a goal of a 10 percent reduction
in outdoor water use by 2030 for
Type 2 customers and a 7 percent
reduction for Type 1 customers.
“We wanted to focus our programs
on what could get the most savings,”
said Maureen Mulcahy, water demand management coordinator for
the district. “So we have a focus on
outdoor efficiency. How our customers use outdoor water is really
impactful.”

WASTE LESS
But the plan doesn’t just saddle
residential customers with more restrictions and regulations. The plan’s
philosophy is not about asking customers to use less; it’s about empowering them to waste less.
And to that end, the plan outlines soon-to-be-implemented demand-management programs, several of which build upon programs the
district already offers. They include
incentives and rebates for water-efficient landscaping and technology
upgrades to irrigation systems, converting high-water-use landscapes
into plantings that use less water and
giveaways of indoor products such
as low-flow showerheads and faucet
aerators.
This summer, the district has also
hired a water conservation intern,
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Beverly
Elaine Kunkel
Oct 3, 1918 May 16, 2018
A memorial service and celebration of
life will be held for Beverly Kunkel on
Saturday, July 14, at the United Methodist
Church in Eagle at 1 p.m.

WATER WASTE

From page A2

who will help with irrigation system consultations. Water managers found that
seemingly similar properties were using
vastly different amounts of water. The
question was, why? The answer could be as
simple as turning sprinkler heads to avoid
spraying on driveways.
“The efficiency of irrigation systems
makes a big difference,” Mulcahy said. “No
one wants to waste water.”
The plan also outlines how customers
can use a software platform to understand
their water use, set efficiency goals and
see how their water use compares to their
neighbors’. For the past five years, staff has
been converting the water meters of the
district’s 10,000 customers to advanced

BEVERLY ELAINE KUNKEL
metering infrastructure. About one-third
are now ready to take advantage of the new
software, Johnson said.
“It’s the whole story of how people understand their water use,” Johnson said. “It’s
not just getting a water bill.”
In addition to residential customers,
the plan sets the goal for commercial and
mixed-use customers to reduce water use by
5 percent within the boundaries of the authority and 3 percent in the district by 2030.
Irrigation-only customers have a goal of
reducing water use by 10 percent by 2030.
Aspen Journalism is collaborating with
the Vail Daily, the Summit Daily News,
The Aspen Times and the Glenwood
Springs Post Independent on coverage of
rivers and water. Learn more at www.
aspenjournalism.org.

SMASH

Biju

$12 Pancake Breakfast
Proceeds benefit Can Do MS

Come celebrate a very special 30th Anniversary of the Triple Bypass

With Chef Biju Thomas
For Info Call 970.390.9730

Sunday, July 15th from 7-10AM @ Nottingham Park
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DISTRICT COURT, EAGLE COUNTY, COLORADO
885 Chambers, PO Box 597, Eagle, CO, 81631
970-328-6373
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION AND DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, STATE OF
COLORADO,
Petitioners,
v.
GEORGE G. BOOCO; EVA M. BOOCO;
ESTATE OF GEORGE G. BOOCO;
ESTATE OF EVA M. BOOCO;
TEAK J. SIMONTON, EAGLE COUNTY TREASURER,
Respondents.
Case No. 2018CV30129
Div. 4
SUMMONS BY PUBLICATION
TO THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF
COLORADO, THE ABOVE-NAMED RESPONDENTS, ANY AND ALL HEIRS, SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS AND INTERESTED
PARTIES
OF
GEORGE G. BOOCO AND EVA M. BOOCO
WHOSE NAMES ARE UNKNOWN, and ALL UNKNOWN PERSONS WHO MAY HAVE A CLAIM
OR INTEREST IN THE SUBJECT MATTER OF
THIS ACTION:
Property owned by George G. Booco, a ½ interest,
and Eva M. Booco, a ½ interest, is the subject of
this condemnation action initiated by the Petitioners, Department of Transportation and the Transportation Commission of Colorado. This action is proceeding before the Honorable Judge Frederick
Walker Gannett, Eagle County District Court
Judge, as case number 2018CV030129. The property to be acquired by condemnation is a portion of
property known in the records of the Eagle County
Assessor as being situated in the Northwest ¼ of
the Southwest ¼ of Section 26, Township 5 South,
Range 81 West of the 6th P.M. being bounded on
the Southeast by the westerly line of Parcel A in
the Decree recorded January 18, 1980, at Reception No. 193978 in Book 297 at Page 586 if extended to the Eagle River, bounded on the Southwest
by US Hwy 24, bounded on the North by the North
line of the Southwest ¼ of Section 26, and bounded on the Northeast by the Eagle River, said Tract
or Parcel of Land being more particularly described
in Exhibit A to the Petition in Condemnation.
As described in the Petition in Condemnation, the
property to be acquired as RW-4 consists of a 245
square foot fee acquisition at vacant land bordering

State Highway 24. The land is needed for installation, operation, and maintenance of highway improvements on U.S. Highway 24 in Minturn,
Colorado. The property is further described in the
Petition in Condemnation. A copy of the Petition in
Condemnation may be obtained from the clerk of
the court.
If you claim to have an interest in this property you
must either:
1.Appear in Division 4 of the Eagle County Courthouse, Eagle County Justice Center, 885 Chambers, PO Box 597, Eagle, CO, 81631, 970-3286373, at the hour of 9:00 a.m. on September 18,
2018; or
2.File a written answer or other response within 35
days after the service of this summons.
Service of this summons shall be complete on the
day of the last publication.
Pursuant to Colorado Rule of Procedure 4, if you
fail to appear on the above date and fail to file your
answer or other response to the complaint in writing within 35 days after the date of the last publication, judgment may be rendered against you by the
court for the relief demanded in the petition without
further notice. In this eminent domain case, the failure to appear shall cause the court, without further
notice, to determine the amount of compensation
owed and to vest title in the Petitioner according to
law.
DATED this 5th day of July, 2018.
CYNTHIA H. COFFMAN
Attorney General
S/ Harry S. Morrow
HARRY S. MORROW, 12435
Assistant Attorney General
Transportation Unit
Civil Litigation & Employment Law Section
Attorneys for the Petitioners
Address of Petitioner:
2829 W. Howard Place
Denver, CO 80204
Published in The Vail Daily and Eagle Valley Enterprise
First Publication: July 12, 2018
Last Publication: August 9, 2018
0000271540

DISTRICT COURT, EAGLE COUNTY, STATE OF COLORADO
CIVIL ACTION NO.2018CV30015, DIVISION 4
SHERIFF’S SALE NO. 2018-000459
COMBINED NOTICE OF SHERIFF’S SALE OF REAL PROPERTY AND RIGHTS TO CURE AND
REDEEM
Plaintiff:
THE HOMESTEAD OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Colorado non-profit corporation.
v.
Defendants:
TRINITY DEVELOPMENT II, COLORADO, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company; EAGLE RIVER
WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT, a political subdivision and quasi-municipal corporation of the State
of Colorado; COLE TAYLOR BANK, an Illinois corporation; and TEAK J. SIMONTON, as Public Trustee
of Eagle County, Colorado.
REGARDING: LOT 4B, THE HOMESTEAD – FILING NO. 2, BLOCKS 13 THRU 16, A RESUBDIVISION
OF LOT 4, BLOCK 16, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED MAY 21, 2001, AS RECEPTION NO.
747447. COUNTY OF EAGLE, STATE OF COLORADO.
Also Known As:
Subdivision: HOMESTEAD FIL 2 Block: 16 Lot: 4B
COUNTY OF EAGLE, STATE OF COLORADO.
Also Known As:
Parcel No. 2105-092-03-031
COUNTY OF EAGLE, STATE OF COLORADO.
Also Known As: 628 Gold Dust Drive, #B, Edwards, Colorado 81632 (the “Property”)
TO THE ABOVE-NAMED DEFENDANTS, PLEASE TAKE NOTICE:
This Notice is to advise you that a Sheriff’s Sale has been commenced through the office of the undersigned Sheriff pursuant to a Court Order dated April 23, 2018, C.R.S. § 38-33.3-316, et seq., and C.R.S.
§ 38-38-101, et. seq., by The Homestead Owners Association, Inc. (the “Association”), the current holder of an assessment lien recorded on September 28, 2017 at Reception No. 201718694 in the records
of the Clerk and Recorder of Eagle County, Colorado and a judgment lien recorded on May 3, 2018 at
Reception No. 201807513 in the records of the Clerk and Recorder of Eagle County, Colorado. The
foreclosure was initiated due to a default under the covenants contained within the Declaration. The
Declaration and Colorado law establish a lien for the benefit of the Association against the Property.
You and each of you are hereby notified that a Sheriff’s Sale of the Property is to be conducted by the
Civil Division of the Sheriff’s Department of Eagle County, Colorado at 9:00 a.m. on the 31st day of
August , 2018 at 0885 E. Chambers Avenue , Eagle, Colorado 81631, phone number (970) 328-8500.
At which the sale, the above-described real property and improvements thereon will be sold to the highest and best bidder for cash or other good funds as allowed by the officer and/or Colorado law for the
purpose of paying the indebtedness to the Association plus attorneys’ fees, the expenses of sale and
other items allowed by law, and will issue to the purchaser a Certificate of Purchase, all as provided by
law. Plaintiff makes no warranties, express or implied, relating to title, condition, possession, or quiet
enjoyment in and to said real property in connection with this sale.
BIDDERS ARE REQUIRED TO HAVE CASH OR CERTIFIED FUNDS SUFFICIENT TO COVER
THEIR HIGHEST BID AT THE TIME OF SALE.
PLEASE NOTE THAT THE LIEN BEING FORECLOSED MAY NOT BE A FIRST LIEN ON THE
SUBJECT PROPERTY. Judgment is in the amount of $8,855.61.
First Publication
Last Publication
Name Of Publication

July 5th, 2018.
August 2nd, 2018
Eagle Valley Enterprise Newspaper

NOTICE OF RIGHTS
YOU MAY HAVE AN INTEREST IN THE REAL PROPERTY BEING FORECLOSED, OR HAVE
CERTAIN RIGHTS OR SUFFER CERTAIN LIABILITIES PURSUANT TO COLORADO STATUTES
AS A RESULT OF SAID FORECLOSURE. YOU MAY HAVE THE RIGHT TO REDEEM SAID REAL
PROPERTY OR YOU MAY HAVE THE RIGHT TO CURE A DEFAULT UNDER THE DEED OF TRUST
BEING FORECLOSED. A COPY OF SAID STATUTES, AS SUCH STATUTES ARE PRESENTLY
CONSTITUTED, WHICH MAY AFFECT YOUR RIGHTS SHALL BE SENT WITH ALL MAILED COPIES
OF THIS NOTICE. HOWEVER, YOUR RIGHTS MAY BE DETERMINED BY PREVIOUS STATUTES.
You are advised that he parties liable thereon, the owner of the Property, or those with an interest in
the Property may take appropriate and timely action under Colorado statutes. In order to be entitled to
take advantage of any rights provided for under Colorado law, you must strictly comply and adhere to
the provisions of the law. The attached Colorado statutes merely set forth the applicable portions of
Colorado statutory law relating to curative and redemption rights; therefore, you should read and review
all the applicable statutes and laws in order to determine which requisite procedures and provisions
control your rights in the subject property.
• A NOTICE OF INTENT TO CURE FILED PURSUANT TO SECTION 38-38-104 SHALL BE FILED
WITH THE OFFICER AT LEAST FIFTEEN (15) CALENDAR DAYS PRIOR TO THE FIRST SCHEDULED SALE DATE OR ANY DATE TO WHICH THE SALE IS CONTINUED;
• A NOTICE OF INTENT TO REDEEM FILED PURSUANT TO SECTION 38-38-302 SHALL BE
FILED WITH THE OFFICER NO LATER THAN EIGHT (8) BUSINESS DAYS AFTER THE SALE;
• IF THE SALE DATE IS CONTINUED TO A LATER DATE, THE DEADLINE TO FILE A NOTICE
OF INTENT TO CURE BY THOSE PARTIES ENTITLED TO CURE MAY ALSO BE EXTENDED.
All telephone inquiries for information should be directed to the office of the undersigned Sheriff at
(970) 328-8500. The name, bar registration number, mailing address, and business telephone number
of the attorney(s) representing the legal owner of the above-described lien are as follows: Tyler J.
Voboril, Esq. #39735, Alpenglow Law, LLC, P.O. Box 1663, Edwards, Colorado 81632, (970) 306-6456.
If the borrower believes that a lender or servicer has violated the requirements for a single point of
contact in C.R.S. § 38-38-103.1 or the prohibition on dual tracking in C.R.S. § 38-38-103.2, the borrower
may file a complaint with the Colorado Attorney General, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
(“CFPB”), or both, but the filing of a complaint will not stop the foreclosure process. The Colorado
Attorney General can be contacted at: (720) 508-6000, Office of the Attorney General, Colorado
Department of Law, Ralph L. Carr Judicial Building, 1300 Broadway, 10th Floor, Denver, Colorado 80203,
www.coag.gov. The CFPB can be contacted at: (855) 411-2372, Consumer Financial Protection Bureau,
P.O. Box 4503, Iowa City, Iowa 52244, www.consumerfinance.gov.
DATE: June 6. 2018

JAMES VAN BEEK
Sheriff of Eagle County, Colorado
By:________________________________
Cheryle A.K. Woolsey, Deputy Sheriff

The Attorney above is acting as a debt collector and is attempting to collect a debt. Any information
provided may be used for that purpose.
Published in the Eagle Valley Enterprise on July 5, 12, 19 and 26, 2018 and August 2, 2018.
0000255945

DISTRICT COURT, EAGLE COUNTY, STATE OF
COLORADO
Court Address: 885 Chambers Ave., P.O. Box 597,
Eagle, CO 81631
Court Phone: 970-328-6373
SUMMONS BY PUBLICATION
Case No.2018 CV030087
Plaintiff:MARRIOTT OWNERSHIP RESORTS, INC.,
a Delaware corporation
v.
Defendants :Jeannine R. Angelo, et al.
THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF COLORADOTO
THE FOLLOWING DEFENDANTS: Estate of Robert
L. Harrison, Park TS, LLC, a Florida Limited Liability
Company, Travis Prouty and Renteria Revocable
Trust, dated May 5, 1998.

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONEDand required to
appear and defend against the claims of the complaint filed with the court in this action, by filing with
the clerk of this court an answer or other response.You are required to file your answer or other response within 35 days after the service of this summons upon you.Service of this summons shall be
complete on the date of the last day of publication.A
copy of the complaint may be obtained from the
clerk of the court.

located in Eagle County, Colorado and described in
the Complaint, to wit:
Estate of Robert L. Harrison, Unit0108, Week 41;
Park TS, LLC, a Florida Limited Liability Company,
Unit 0107, Week 14;
Travis Prouty, Unit 0106, Week 43;
Renteria Revocable Trust, dated May 5, 1998,Unit
0208, Week 42.
Dated this 29thday of June, 2018.

If you fail to file your answer or other response to the
complaint in writing within 35 days after the date of
the last publication, judgment by default may be rendered against you by the court for the relief demanded in the complaint, without further notice.

LARSEN & LYNCH LLC
Diane R. Larsen #11349
175 Main Street, C-104
Edwards, CO 81632
Office: 970-926-9100

This is an actionin rem to foreclose Birch at Streamside Condominiums Association assessment liens
against the following defendants and real properties

THIS SUMMONS IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO
RULE 4(g), C.R.C.P., AS AMENDED.

DISTRICT COURT
EAGLE COUNTY, STATE OF COLORADO
Court Address:
885 Chambers Ave.
P.O. Box 597
Eagle, CO 81631
Case Number: 2018 CV 030053
Plaintiff: MARRIOTT OWNERSHIP RESORTS, INC., a Delaware corporation
v.
Defendants: Tim Burrows et al.
SHERIFF’S COMBINED NOTICE OF SALE AND RIGHT TO CURE and/or REDEEM
SALE NO. #18-000472
Under the Judgment and Decree entered against defendants Robert R. Hicks and Helen Sue Hicks
on April 27, 2018, in the above-entitled action, I am ordered to sell the following property:
A Time-Span Estate consisting of Time-Span Estate No. 25 in Unit No. 5301 of designated season
Special, of Evergreen at Streamside , a Condominium established pursuant to the Colorado
Condominium act (C.R.S. 38-33-101, et Seq.) and submitted by Condominium and Time Share
ownership Declaration for Evergreen at Streamside Condominiums, recorded July 23, 1991, in Book
558 at Page 384 of the Records of the Clerk and Recorder of Eagle County, Colorado and as described
on the Condominium Map for Evergreen at Streamside Condominiums recorded July 23, 1991 in Book
558 at Page 383 of the Records of the Clerk and Recorder of Eagle County, Colorado.
The Judgment and Decree directs me to foreclose on the following lien: Notice of Assessment Lien
recorded on January 19, 2012, at Reception No. 201201261 of the records of the Clerk and Recorder
in Eagle County, Colorado, and to apply the proceeds as directed in the Judgment and Decree.
The Plaintiff named above is the judgment creditor in this action and the current owner of the evidence
of debt (the judgment entered herein) secured by the property being sold. The outstanding balance due
and owing on such judgment as of April 27, 2018,is detailed below:
$43,758.86 representing: $42,606.14 for delinquent condominium assessments,$373.22 in costs, and
$779.50 for attorneys’ fees, plus interest to be accrued on the judgment at the rate of 18% per annum.
If you are the owner of the real property, or if you are a person who might be liable on the indebtedness
secured by the assessment lien, you may have certain statutory rights to cure. Such rights are provided
to you under Colo. Rev. Stat. §38-37-108, §38-38-103 and §38-38-104, and Colo. Rev. Stat. §38-38-301,
§38-38-304, §38-38-305 and §38-38-306.
If the sale date is continued to a later date, the deadline to file a notice of intent to cure by those
parties entitled to cure may also be extended.
In order to exercise these rights, you must comply with the provisions of the statutes. In the event of any
conflict between this notice and the statutes, the statutes are controlling. Therefore, you may wish to read
the statutes and consult an attorney of your choice.Intent to cure or redeem as provided by the aforesaid
laws must be directed to or conducted at the office of the Sheriff for Eagle County, Civil Division; 885
East Chambers Road, Eagle, Colorado 81631.
If the borrower believes that a lender or servicer has violated the requirements for a single point of
contact in section 38-38-103.1 or the prohibition on dual tracking in section 38-38-103.2, the borrower
may file a complaint with the Colorado attorney general, the CFPB, or both, but the filing of a complaint
will not stop the foreclosure process.
Colorado Attorney General
Federal Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
1300 Broadway, 10th Floor
P.O. Box 4503
Denver, Colorado 80203
Iowa City, Iowa 52244
(800) 222-4444
(855) 411-2372
www.coloradoattorneygeneral.gov
www.consumerfinance.gov
I shall offer for public sale to the highest bidder, for cash, at public auction, all the right, title and interest
of the defendant in said property on September 7th, 2018, at 9:00 a.m. at the Office of the Eagle
County Sheriff, 0885 East Chambers Avenue, Eagle, Colorado 81631.
NOTICE: THE LIEN BEING FORECLOSED MAY NOT BE A FIRST LIEN.
DATED this 23rd day of May ,2018.
JAMES VAN BEEK
Sheriff of Eagle County, Colorado
By: Deputy Sheriff
Cheryle A.K. Woolsey
LARSEN & LYNCH LLC
Diane R. Larsen #11349
175 Main Street; Unit C-104
Edwards, CO 81632
Office: 970-926-9100
Fax: 970-926-9101
Email: dlarsenl@larsenlynch.com
ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF
Published in the Eagle Valley Enterprise
First Publication:
July 12th, 2018.
Last Publication: August 9th, 2018.
0000248683

DISTRICT COURT
EAGLE COUNTY, STATE OF COLORADO
Court Address:
885 Chambers Ave.
P.O. Box 597
Eagle, CO 81631
Case Number: 2018 CV 030053
Plaintiff: MARRIOTT OWNERSHIP RESORTS, INC., a Delaware corporation
v.
Defendants: Tim Burrows et al.
SHERIFF’S COMBINED NOTICE OF SALE AND RIGHT TO CURE and/or REDEEM
SALE NO. 18-000479
Under the Judgment and Decree entered against defendant The Peggy A. Shea Living Trust, UTA
dated December 1, 1998 on April 27, 2018, in the above-entitled action, I am ordered to sell the
following property:
A Time-Span Estate consisting of Time-Span Estate No. 29 in Unit No. 5307 of designated season
Special, of Evergreen at Streamside , a Condominium established pursuant to the Colorado
Condominium act (C.R.S. 38-33-101, et Seq.) and submitted by Condominium and Time Share
ownership Declaration for Evergreen at Streamside Condominiums, recorded July 23, 1991, in Book 558
at Page 384 of the Records of the Clerk and Recorder of Eagle County, Colorado and as described on
the Condominium Map for Evergreen at Streamside Condominiums recorded July 23, 1991 in Book 558
at Page 383 of the Records of the Clerk and Recorder of Eagle County, Colorado.
The Judgment and Decree directs me to foreclose on the following lien: Notice of Assessment Lien
recorded on April 28, 2017, at Reception No. 201707642 of the records of the Clerk and Recorder in
Eagle County, Colorado, and to apply the proceeds as directed in the Judgment and Decree.
The Plaintiff named above is the judgment creditor in this action and the current owner of the evidence
of debt (the judgment entered herein) secured by the property being sold. The outstanding balance due
and owing on such judgment as of April 27, 2018,is detailed below:
$5,137.40 representing: $4,367.78 for delinquent condominium assessments,$309.62 in costs, and
$460.00 for attorneys’ fees, plus interest to be accrued on the judgment at the rate of 18% per annum.
If you are the owner of the real property, or if you are a person who might be liable on the indebtedness
secured by the assessment lien, you may have certain statutory rights to cure. Such rights are provided
to you under Colo. Rev. Stat. §38-37-108, §38-38-103 and §38-38-104, and Colo. Rev. Stat. §38-38-301,
§38-38-304, §38-38-305 and §38-38-306.
If the sale date is continued to a later date, the deadline to file a notice of intent to cure by those
parties entitled to cure may also be extended.
In order to exercise these rights, you must comply with the provisions of the statutes. In the event of any
conflict between this notice and the statutes, the statutes are controlling. Therefore, you may wish to read
the statutes and consult an attorney of your choice.Intent to cure or redeem as provided by the aforesaid
laws must be directed to or conducted at the office of the Sheriff for Eagle County, Civil Division; 885
East Chambers Road, Eagle, Colorado 81631.
If the borrower believes that a lender or servicer has violated the requirements for a single point of
contact in section 38-38-103.1 or the prohibition on dual tracking in section 38-38-103.2, the borrower
may file a complaint with the Colorado attorney general, the CFPB, or both, but the filing of a complaint
will not stop the foreclosure process.
Colorado Attorney General
Federal Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
1300 Broadway, 10th Floor
P.O. Box 4503
Denver, Colorado 80203
Iowa City, Iowa 52244
(800) 222-4444
(855) 411-2372
www.coloradoattorneygeneral.gov
www.consumerfinance.gov
I shall offer for public sale to the highest bidder, for cash, at public auction, all the right, title and interest
of the defendant in said property on September 7th, 2018, at 9:00 a.m. at the Office of the Eagle
County Sheriff, 0885 East Chambers Avenue, Eagle, Colorado 81631.
NOTICE: THE LIEN BEING FORECLOSED MAY NOT BE A FIRST LIEN.
DATED this 23rd day of May , 2018.
JAMES VAN BEEK
Sheriff of Eagle County, Colorado
By: Deputy Sheriff
Cheryle A.K. Woolsey
LARSEN & LYNCH LLC
Diane R. Larsen #11349
175 Main Street; Unit C-104
Edwards, CO 81632
Office: 970-926-9100
Fax: 970-926-9101
Email: dlarsenl@larsenlynch.com
ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF
Published in the Eagle Valley Enterprise
First Publication: July 12th, 2018.
Last Publication: August 9th, 2018.
0000248630

Published in the Eagle Valley Enterprise (Eagle
County, Colorado)July 12, 19, 26, August 2, and
9,2018.
0000269602
EAGLE RIVER WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT
Notice of public comment period
The draft Eagle River Regional Water Efficiency
Plan is available for review by the public, which can
submit comments through July 30.
The plan is a joint effort by the Eagle River Water &
Sanitation District and the Upper Eagle Regional
Water Authority that outlines actions the organizations will take to meet increasing regional water demands with available supply into the future in an environmentally and fiscally responsible manner.
Community members can review the draft plan at
the district office in Vail during business hours and
anytime online at erwsd.org. All comments received
will be considered for integration into the
final plan and will be noted in a plan appendix.
To submit comments, contact water demand management coordinator Maureen Mulcahy
at mmulcahy@erwsd.org, 970-477-5402, or 846
Forest Road, Vail, CO 81657. Written comments are
preferred for better tracking and inclusion in the final
plan.
Published in the Eagle Valley Enterprise on July 12,
2018.
0000271874
INVITATION TO BID
Avon Drinking Water Facility Raw Water Intake
Improvements
Contract No.: 18.20.013
(Engineer): SGM, Inc
(Owner):
Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
Sealed bids will be received by Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority, 846 Forest Road, Vail, CO
81657, until 3:00PM local time July 26, 2017. Bids
received after this time will not be accepted and will
be returned unopened.
At said place and time, and promptly thereafter, all
bids that have been duly received will be opened
publicly and read aloud. All interested parties are invited to attend. The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive irregularities or informalities in any bid.
The work to be performed generally includes: Replacement of water intake screens within the Eagle
River, minor concrete modifications within the wet
well, replacement of thirty-six inch intake piping and
valve, and installation of a new eight-inch bypass
pipeline.
Bids shall be submitted in accordance with the requirements stipulated in the Instruction
to Bidders.
Electronic copies of the Drawings and Project Specifications for use in preparing Bids may be obtained
from the Engineer electronically at no charge.
Bidders shall send an email to Debbie Hoffman at
Eagle River Water and Sanitation District, dhoffman
@erwsd.org. The email subject line shall read: Request for Electronic Bid Documents – ADWF
Raw Water Intake Improvements. The email
shall contain the following information:Name, Company & phone number. FTP site login information
will be sent via email to the requester once adequate information has been provided.
Drawings and Specifications shall be available for
download and viewing on July 12, 2018.
Each Bidder shall file with his Bid a cashier’s
check, or a Bid Bond, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders.
The Bidder to whom a Contract is awarded will be
required to furnish a Performance, Payment and
Warranty Bond guaranteeing faithful performance.
No Bids may be withdrawn within a period of sixty
(60) days after the date Bids are opened.
A mandatory Prebid Conference will be held onsite
located behind the Avon Wastewater Treatment Facility at 950 Beaver Creek Blvd, Avon, Colorado,
81620, on July 16, 2018 at 1:00 p.m.
Bids will be considered only from Bidders who have
attended the Prebid Conference. Bids from Bidders
not indicated in the Engineer’s records to have
been in attendance at the Prebid Conference will be
returned unopened.
Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority
By:
Linn Brooks (General Manager)
Published in the Eagle Valley Enterprise on July 5
and 12, 2018.
0000268983
NOTICE OF SPECIAL EVENTS PERMIT
The Town of Gypsum Planning Department has
approved with conditions a Special Events Permit
Application for the 2018 Praise in the Park Events
which will include live music and food. Event activities will be held at Lundgren Amphitheater and
lawn area and the Fox Den, on the date listed below:
2018 PRAISE IN THE PARK
SEPTEMBER 22ND, 2018
Any person alleged to be negatively affected by
the granting or denial of this Special Events Permit application may file with the Community Development Director of the Town of Gypsum a written
appeal of the decision no later than July 22nd,
2018 which will be presented before the Town
Council of the Town of Gypsum.
_______________________________________
Lana Gallegos, Community Development Director
(970) 524-1729
Lana@TownofGypsum.com
Published in the Eagle Valley Enterprise on July
12, 2018.
0000271893
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Eagle County wildfires could have knocked out electricity to
thousands
July 16, 2018
EAGLE COUNTY — The Red Canyon II fire just northeast of Wolcott gave a glimpse into just how vulnerable the valley is to natural disaster.
That fire, which sparked the evening of Sunday, July 8, consumed a relatively small area — fewer than 30 acres. But the Red Canyon Estates
subdivision was evacuated for a time. The fire also threatened the main power lines that serve Edwards, Avon and Vail.
County officials the evening of July 8 sent out an Eagle County Alert (http://www.ecalert.org/) warning residents to be prepared for a "prolonged" power
outage to the eastern portion of the valley.
In response, the Eagle River Water & Sanitation District declared a water supply emergency, which bans all outdoor watering.
In the case of the alert, "prolonged" has a more dire meaning than just a matter of hours. Officials were concerned that losing that line to fire could
possibly knock out electric service for as much several days.
In the case of the water district, that would have taxed the capabilities of a large, complex system that delivers water from East Vail to Edwards on the
valley floor, as well as areas including Bachelor Gulch and Cordillera.
'PROLONGED' MEANS DAYS
District communications and public affairs manager Diane Johnson said the district could probably operate normally for as long as a couple of days
without electricity. There are generators to pump water into some of the district's 50 storage tanks. From there, gravity would take care of getting water
into homes.
But, Johnson said, the warning of a possible outage measured in days prompted district officials to act fast.
The order went out to pump more water into storage tanks, particularly those on the upper end of relay systems that pump from tank to tank to tank.
There were people on duty that night to carry out that order.
The district also put out the notice of the water supply emergency as quickly as possible — in this case, after 10 p.m. on a Sunday. In case power was
knocked out to cellphone towers and Wi-Fi routers, the news needed to go out while the lights were still on.
Putting as much water as possible into the tanks is basically at the top of the to-do list in any event that threatens water supplies. Those threats range
from hazardous material spills into streams to loss of electric power to the pumping equipment.
Johnson said in the case of hazardous material spills, stream intakes — the primary water supplies for the district — are closed immediately and stay
closed until the threat has passed. In that case, the district uses its wells and water from the tanks to supply the system.
But those tanks aren't just for drinking water. In fact, Johnson said, the big storage tanks "aren't for daily use." Instead, that water is reserved in large
part for firefighting.
"It's putting out fires that determines tank size," Johnson said.
If the intakes are shut down, then the water in the tanks and water in the mains is what's available. Johnson said that's probably enough to take care of
essentials. Outdoor water isn't essential.
MORE 'RESILIENCY' NEEDED
Holy Cross Energy CEO Bryan Hannegan said the Red Canyon II fire and the Lake Christine fire near Basalt have prompted that organization to start
thinking about adding "resiliency" to the utility's delivery systems.
In the case of the Lake Christine fire, Hannegan said there are four main lines that go into Basalt and Aspen. Three failed. If the fourth had failed, then
power would have been down for as long as several days.
In the case of the Red Canyon II fire — so named because of a previous Red Canyon fire in another state — that blaze threatened the two main lines
into the upper Eagle River Valley.
As was the case in the Roaring Fork Valley, one line standing is sufficient to power the area. If both had gone down, then the outage would have lasted
for days.
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Hannegan said repair crews can't go into an area until a fire is contained. That's why full failures in those cases would take so long to repair.
With attention focused on those narrowly averted disasters, Hannegan said Holy Cross officials are talking about new options ranging from generating
power closer to service areas to providing secondary lines to those areas.
In the case of the Eagle River Valley, Holy Cross is talking about running a transmission line from Gilman into Avon. If that line was in place now, then
the Red Canyon II fire, while potentially serious, wouldn't have been nearly as worrisome.
At this point, Hannegan said it's "prudent" to use the attention from the Lake Christine and Red Canyon II fires to focus attention on surviving the next
disaster, whatever it is.
And, given how dependent on electricity communications systems from cellphones to police radios are, that work needs to be done as quickly as
possible.
But power outages are possible. In that case, it's prudent for residents to be ready to ride out a disaster.
"It's never a bad time for a go bag or power outage kit," Hannegan said.
Eagle County Emergency Management Director Barry Smith said it's wise to act now to pull together emergency kits.
Waiting until the next emergency alert is too late, he said.
Smith said people need to store enough water, nonperishable food and ways to keep warm for at least three days.
For water, count on using at least two gallons per person per day, Smith said. And people need to be ready to either eat cold food or use outdoor grills.
Camp stoves are dangerous inside. Filling bathtubs can be handy for toilet flushing and other non-drinking use.
Smith also advised having battery-powered lights and radios handy.
And, while Lake Christine and Red Canyon II got plenty of attention, those incidents are far from the only ones that have at least temporarily threatened
the way we live today.
"We've had more near misses than I'd like to mention," Smith said.
Vail Daily Business Editor Scott Miller can be reached at smiller@vaildaily.com (mailto:smiller@vaildaily.com) and 970-748-2930.
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Risks to Lake Mead, Colorado River intensifying
greatly, federal officials say

FILE--In this Oct. 14, 2015, file photo, a riverboat glides through Lake Mead on the C… ▲
By Tony Davis Arizona Daily Star
Jun 29, 2018


¬

â

TEMPE — The risks of Lake Mead dropping to catastrophically low levels have
ramped up dramatically, say federal officials who came here Thursday to push for
completion of a long-stalled drought plan for the Colorado River Basin.
At a presentation before hundreds of local and state officials, Bureau of
Reclamation Commissioner Brenda Burman and a top aide warned that the risks
to the lake are unacceptable. They said it’s urgent that Arizona officials resolve
their differences over the drought plan and get on board with six other Colorado
River Basin states that are moving toward adopting one.
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Since the seven states approved a set of guidelines for managing the river’s
reservoirs in 2007, the risks of Lake Mead dropping to very low levels has
increased by three to six times, the bureau officials said.

They spoke at a briefing that also found once-warring Arizona Department of
Water Resources and Central Arizona Project officials moving closer together on
issues that had split them apart for well over a year. Both ADWR chief Tom
Buschatzke and CAP general manager Ted Cooke enthusiastically endorsed the
idea of a drought plan, although Cooke warned that the resulting reduction in river
water use would boost water rates the CAP charges to Tucson, Phoenix and
other municipal customers over time.
“We are not here to scare you. We are just presenting the best information we
have,” Burman told a gathering that virtually filled a 275-person auditorium at the
Arizona Historical Society Museum in Tempe.
“Keeping our fingers crossed, hoping for good hydrology” and waiting for the
current and future interior secretaries to ignore the laws of the Colorado River that
require protecting its reservoirs from depletion is not how to deal with this
problem, she said.
“It’s not how we’ve dealt with it in the past, and it’s not how Arizona wants to deal
with it in the future,” said Burman, a longtime Arizonan who has worked for the
Salt River Project utility and for former U.S. Sen. Jon Kyl of Arizona in the past.
The bureau’s forecasts for how far and fast Lake Mead’s elevations could fall
were most severe when the forecasters used what they called a “stress test.” It
https://tucson.com/news/local/risks-to-lake-mead-colorado-river-intensifying-greatly-federal-officials/articl... 7/18/2018
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relies on computer models assuming a continuation of the last 30 years of
unusually dry weather.
Less severe risks of such declines were predicted when the bureau relied on the
river’s entire historical record, covering 1906 to 2015, which included several
much wetter spells, including the wettest period on record for the river, in the early
20th century.
Specifically, the bureau said:
• Based on the river’s entire historical record, there’s about a 65 percent chance of Lake
Mead falling below 1,075 feet — the level at which the first shortage in river water
available to the CAP would occur — by 2026. Using just the last 30 years of records as
a base for forecasting, that risk grows to more than 80 to 90 percent, covering a period
from 2020 to 2026.
• The risk of Mead dropping below 1,025 feet by 2026 is more than 40 percent using the
bureau’s “stress test” forecasts, and about 30 percent when the forecasts rely on the
river’s entire historical record.
• The risk of Mead being less than 1,000 feet high by 2026 is about 20 percent under
the “stress test” forecast and less than 10 percent when the river’s entire historical
record is used.

The thought of Mead dropping below 1,025 or 1,000 feet is particularly alarming
to many state water officials in Arizona and elsewhere. At those levels, U.S.
interior Department intervention to manage the river’s reservoirs is certain.

At that point, nobody knows what steps Interior would take to prop up the
reservoirs, but it would almost certainly make drastic cuts in water deliveries to
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major cities such as Tucson and Phoenix that rely on the river for drinking water
via the $4 billion Central Arizona Project.
On the other hand, all these risks would drop dramatically if Arizona, Nevada and
California agree on a drought plan to conserve up to 1.2 million acre feet a year of
river water annually over time, bureau officials predicted.
At a news conference after the three-hour briefing, bureau official Terry Fulp laid
out what he considered to be a likely worst case scenario if Mead is allowed to
keep dropping without a major intervention such as the drought plan.
If Lake Mead gets to a low place, about 1,020 feet, followed by two of the worst
years of river flows on record, back to back, then the lake would crash and drastic
cuts would be needed, he said.
“It will be very difficult for all of us to manage those cuts,” said Fulp, director of the
bureau’s Lower Colorado regional office. “We can figure out how to deal with
those (water users) with the highest priorities and the lowest priorities, but not all
the stuff in the middle.”
Burman called the drought plan an agreement, lasting seven years, that would
“buy down” risks to the river enough to give officials time to craft longer-term
solutions.

Contact reporter Tony Davis at tdavis@tucson.com or 806-7746. On
Twitter@tonydavis987
https://tucson.com/news/local/risks-to-lake-mead-colorado-river-intensifying-greatly-federal-officials/articl... 7/18/2018
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System Capacity Analysis
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Warranty Period
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Water Demand Worksheet
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Construction Acceptance
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Inclusion

Redevelopment
Infill
Infill
Infill
Redevelopment
Redevelopment
PUD
Upzoning
Infill
Infill
Infill
Redevelopment
PUD
Infill
Infill
PUD
PUD
PUD
Redevelopment
Redevelopment
Infill
Infill
Redevelopment
Redevelopment
Redevelopment
Upzoning
Redevelopment
Redevelopment
PUD
Redevelopment

Connection Application
Submitted

Mixed Use
85.4
Vail
2014 Warranty
Residential
32
Vail
2016 Warranty
Commercial
Eagle-Vail 2016 In Construction
Commercial
10.3
Avon
2015 Warranty
Commercial
Edwards 2017 In Construction
Mixed Use
198
Vail
Conceptual
Residential
12.9
Edwards 2017 Warranty
Residential
120
Edwards 2018 In Construction
Residential
2
Avon
2016 Warranty
Residential
3
Minturn
2016 Warranty
Commercial
10.3
Avon
2017 Warranty
Commercial
Vail
2017 In Construction
Residential
15
Avon
2016 Warranty
Residential
6
Vail
2016 In Construction
Mixed Use
77
Avon
2018? Conceptual
Residential
21
Edwards 2018 In Construction
Mixed Use
110
Edwards 2018? Plan Review
Mixed Use 594+com Edwards 2019? Conceptual
Mixed Use
37
Vail
2018? Plan Review
Commercial
Edwards 2017 In Construction
Infrastructure
N/A
Vail
2018 In Construction
Infrastructure
N/A
Vail
2018 Conceptual
Residential
65
Vail
2018 In Construction
Residential
4
Avon
2018 Plan Review
Mixed Use
4 + com
Vail
2018 In Construction
Mixed Use
83
Avon
2019? Conceptual
Residential
9
Vail
2019? Conceptual
Residentila
40
Eagle-Vail 2019? Conceptual
Residential
59
Avon
2019? Plan Review
Residential
12
Vail
2019? Plan Review

Type of Development

Project Status

Anticipated
Construction Start

Location

SFEs Proposed

2014
2015
2015
2015
2015
2015
2015
2016
2016
2016
2016
2016
2016
2016
2016
2017
2017
2017
2017
2017
2017
2017
2017
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018

Type of Use

Year Submitted

Project Name
Strata aka:The Lion
Chamonix Residential Development
Thompson Commercial Building
Avon Medical Office Building
Edwards Fire Station
Marriot Residence Inn
Anglers PUD
6 West Apartments (formerly Via)
5040 Wildridge Road East
Cross Creek Properties
Avon Public Safety Facility
VVMC Phase II-East Wing
BaseCamp
3010 Basingdale (Phase 1)
Avon Hotel
Stillwater
Fox Hollow Amended PUD
River Park PUD
Vail Mountain View Phase II
VVMC-Edwards Campus Addition
Red Sandstone Parking Garage
S. Frontage Rd Roundabout
Solar Vail
185 Elk Track
SSCV Club House Expansion
Colorado World Resort
534 E Lionshead Circle
Warner Building 2 Conversion
Riverfront Village
Miradoro

Construction Plan Review
Construction Plan
Approval

Construction
Approval Process

Development Approval Process

x

x
x
n/a n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a n/a

UPPER EAGLE REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY 2018 CONTRACT LOG
Contract

Date

Change Order

Number

Executed

signed on

18.20.013

Bid Process

Project Name
Avon Drinking Water Facility Raw
Water Intake Improvements

Contractor

Contract

Project

Account

Statue and

Amount

Manager

Number

Notes

D. Hoffman

2018 JOINT CONTRACT LOG FOR UPPER EAGLE REGIONAL WATER
AUTHORITY & EAGLE RIVER WATER & SANITATION DISTRICT
Contract
Number

Original
Date
Contract
Executed

18.15.056

07/09/18

Black Lake Wetland
Inspection and Maintenance

pending

Water Distribution Master
Plan and Hydraulic Model
Development

18.15.062

Change Order
signed on:

Project Name

Contractor

Alpine Hydroecoogy
LLC
Advanced
Engineering and
Environmental
Services, Inc.
(AE2S)

Contract
Amount

Project
Manager

Account
Number

Status
Notes

$11,089.00

P. Miller

10.3.9.520.30.603 &
10.3.9.20.34.061
Open/Contract Expires 12/31/18

$14,000.00

M. Schuette

20.1.2.00.00.497 &
10.3.2.20.09.006

Open/Contract Expires 12/31/19

DISTRICT

COMMITTEES

AUDIT/BUDGET
Steve Coyer
Steve Friedman

HAHNEWALD BARN
Steve Coyer
Bill Simmons
Linn Brooks

RETIREMENT PLANS
Steve Friedman
Linn Brooks
Melissa Mills McLoota
James Wilkins

REAL ESTATE AND NEW
DEVELOPMENT
George Gregory
Brian Sipes

EMPLOYEE HOUSING
Steve Coyer
Dick Cleveland

ORGANIZATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
Bill Simmons
Dick Cleveland

NEW DEVELOPMENT
Geoff Dreyer
Mick Woodworth

UNALLOCATED WATER
Geoff Dreyer
Sarah Smith Hymes

AUTHORITY
AUDIT/BUDGET
Geoff Dreyer
George Gregory

TRAER CREEK TANK
George Gregory
Sarah Smith Hymes

JOINT

WATER QUALITY

RULES AND REGULATIONS

Sarah Smith Hymes (A)
Timm Paxson (D)

Kim Bell Williams (A)
Bill Simmons (D)

WATER DEMAND
MANAGEMENT
Mick Woodworth (A)
Steve Coyer (D)

EAGLE RIVER MOU

CLIMATE ACTION PLAN

Sarah Smith Hymes (A)
George Gregory (D)

Sarah Smith Hymes (A)
Timm Paxson (D)

WILDERNESS POLICY
(DORMANT)
George Gregory (A)
Mick Woodworth (A)
Vacancy (D)
(A) = Authority
(D) = District

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Board of Directors

FROM:

Catherine Hayes, Board Secretary

DATE:

July 2, 2018

RE:

Summary of Authority’s June 28, 2018, Board Meeting

The following is a summary of items discussed at the June 28, 2018, Authority Board Meeting:
Board members present and acting included: Chair George Gregory, Vice Chair Sarah Smith Hymes,
Secretary Kim Bell Williams, Treasurer Geoff Dreyer, and directors Pam Elsner and Mick Woodworth.
Water Efficiency Plan
Public Comment
Period

Maureen Mulcahy discussed the joint regional water efficiency plan and the need to
establish a formal public comment period before the plan is officially adopted by the
board and submitted to the Colorado Water Conservation Board for final approval.
The board unanimously resolved to hold a 30-day public comment period from July
1 – July 31, 2018.

Board Member Input

Director Elsner noted discussion at the latest Beaver Creek Metropolitan District
meeting regarding irrigation company training from the District. Some irrigation
companies that operate in Beaver Creek indicated the need for additional training.
Staff will follow up on this. Secretary Williams noted Steve Barber was the interim
community manager for EagleVail.

I-70 West Vail Pass
Auxiliary Lane Project

Linn Brooks and Diane Johnson discussed the CDOT project to add auxiliary lanes
both east and westbound, west of Vail Pass. Siri Roman is participating on the
District’s behalf on the project’s technical team. Linn and Diane noted the additional
lanes address safety concerns due to the physical characteristics of the road, not
due to capacity reasons. Discussion ensued regarding timeline, logistics, and the
possibility of phasing the project. Linn emphasized Siri’s role in ensuring water
resources and water quality concerns were addressed by CDOT. The Board agreed
to write a letter to CDOT requesting project phasing and systematic re-evaluation
rather than one large project.

2017 Consumer
Confidence Report

Brian Tracy discussed the 2017 CCR, a required annual communication to all
customers regarding the quality of the Authority’s water. He said there were no
violations in the 2017 calendar year. He also noted the water department voluntarily
participates in the American Water Works Association’s partnership for safe water
foundation and received Phase III recognition. There is one more phase to achieve,
at which time the water system will be considered “fully optimized.”

Eagle Park Reservoir
Update

Brian Tracy discussed the arc flash that occurred at the East Fork pump station.
The pump station was offline from May 29 – June 5, and because of staff efforts
and assistance from the Vail Resorts snowmaking department, power was restored
and the reservoir was only 55 acre feet short of filling, which is much more
favorable than original estimates. Linn Brooks complimented staff on the efforts to
get the station online.

Shoshone Call

Glenn Porzak reported the Shoshone Call is now on the river.

Eagle River Valley
(ERV) Mobile Home
Park Update

Jason Cowles updated on a meeting with Ascentia Group, the owner of the ERV,
regarding possible connection of the ERV to the Authority’s water system. The
owner was concerned about the projected cost but does have a senior Brett Ditch
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water right that could be dedicated for 62 acre feet. A $1.7 million cash in lieu
payment would also be required, in addition to tap fees of $1.4 million and roughly
$20,000 – $25,000/month for the water bill, based on water usage history. Jason
noted more discussion was needed with the owner, staff, and involved community
members; he will keep the board apprised.
Eagle River
Integrated Water Plan

Jason Cowles reported on a recent meeting of Eagle River stakeholders, including
Colorado Springs, Aurora, Colorado Parks and Wildlife, American Rivers, town of
Avon, Eagle County and others. The group is working on a management plan for
the Eagle River and wanted to establish ground rules for decision making as the
plan moves forward. The group will use scenario planning to look at possible future
pressures on the Eagle River with climate change and additional water
development, among others.

Water Supply,
Weather Outlook

Diane Johnson discussed local and regional water supply and weather outlooks.
Lake Powell is projected to deliver 9 million acre feet to Lake Mead this year, and it
is believed that Mead will hit a threshold low level this year as well. Diane noted a
recent meeting of the Upper Colorado River Commission, comprised of the four
upper basin states, during which the commission voted to halt the system
conservation pilot project at the end of the year, citing no determination on how to
use the water that is saved.

Continuing General
Counsel Services

The board unanimously approved a continuing engagement letter with Collins
Cockrel and Cole for legal services.

Black Lakes Water
Update

Glenn Porzak discussed the water supply for the Avon WWTF when the plant is
shut down for construction and maintenance. The board directed Glenn and Tom
Williamsen to prepare an augmentation plan for the Black Lakes water to augment
out of priority diversions from Authority water rights and be backed by up to 300
acre feet of water that is upstream of all Authority diversions.

